
City of Berwyn 
City Council Meeting 

MARCH 9, 2010 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Item(s) 

ROLL CALL 

A. Pledge of Allegiance -Moment of Silence 

B. Open Forum 
Topic must NOT be on the Agenda 

C. Presentation of Previous Meeting Minutes for Approval 
1. Minutes of Regular Meeting -2/23/l0 
2. Minutes of Committee of the Whole- 2123/10 

D. Bid Opening - Tabulations 

E. Berwyn Development Corp - Be!WVfl TownshiplHealth District 
1. BDC-TIF application-Usa Equilibrium-6306 W. Cennak Rd. 
2. BDC-TIF application-Autre Monde, 6727 W. Roosevelt Rd. 

F. Reports and Communications from the Mayor 
1 Proclamation-Chief William Kushner 
2. Chief William Kushner's Buy Back 
3. 911 Board Appointment 

G. Reports and Communications from the City Clerk 

H. Communications from (Zoning) Board of Appeals 

Pages 

1- 4 
1- 3 

1-3 
1-5 

t- 1 
1-4 
I-I 

I. Reports and Communications from Aldennen, Committees. other Boards and Commissions 
1. Slayd-Chapter 859: Newspaper Vending Machines 1-6 
2. Skryd-2200 Block of East Avenue 1·1 
3. Avila-Modifications to Aztec America Bank 1-2 
4. Avila-Schedule of Street Cleaning for 161h St. 1-1 
5. B/ZIP Committee-Referral Item #13 of 11 1 211 O·Donner addition I-I 

to homes 
6. P&T Committee-Section 873.16-Traffic control devices I-I 
7. Budget Committee-Review 2010 line items in Police, Fire & Pub Wks. 1·1 
8. Budget Committee-Reviewed Draft of2010 Budget I-I 

J. Staff Reports 
t. Defer-Asst to City Adm. Recommend changes to Animal Ord 616.07 1-7 
2. Asst. to City Adm. Animal Ordinance 616.07 & Approval of 1-7 

Intergovernmental Agreement 
3. City Administrator-Recommendation of Cleaning Services 1-7 
4. City Administrator-Inventory of Buildings along Cennak Rd Corridor 1-9 

Moreh 9,2010 

1 



TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued) 

5. City Administrator-Recommend Approve Drug & Alcohol Testing Prog. 1-1 
6. City Administrator-Request Approval of Priority 1-12 
7. Library Director-Replace Youth Services Page position 1-3 
8. Law-Intergovernmental Agreement-North Berwyn Park District & 

Berwyn North Berwyn School District 98 1-2 
9. Law-Ordinance-Purchase of Property 7146-7150 Cermak Road 

Agreed Final Judgment Order-Lease Agreement 1-21 
10. Law-Indenmification Resolution 1-4 
11. Law-Settle Case No. 06M41286 I-I 
12. Finance Director-20 1 O-Budget-Yiew budget on City's Website at 1-2 

http://www.berwyn-il.gov/pdf/Clerk/2010-Budget-DRAFT.pdf. 
Hard copy may be viewed in CJerk's Office 

13. P.W. Dir. 2009 CDBG Sidewalk Replacement-Approve Contactor Pay 1-4 
Estimate #2 

14. Traffic Engineer-2200 Blk of Clarence-Referral item 1-2 of 8125/09 1-1 
15. Traffic Engineer-Tum Restrictions at 14111 St. & Oak Park Ave. 1-1 

K. Consent Agenda 
I. Budget Chairman-Payroll-3/3/l 0-$819,924.66 \-1 
2. Budget Chairman-Payables-3/9110-$657,418.83 1-12 
3. Santoy-Handicap Sign-So Raynard-I 327 Harvey 1-5 
4. Laureto-Fitzgerald's Festivals J-1 
5. Finance Director-Surplus Dell Servers I-I 
6. Licensing & Collections-Business Licenses issued February 2010 1-7 
7. Building Director-Building pennits issued in February 20 \ 0 1-8 

March 9.2010 

2 

http://www.berwyn-il.gov/pdf/Clerk/2010-Budget-DRAFT.pdf


A Pledge of Allegiance-Moment of Silence 

B. Open Forum 

(Topic Must Not Be on The Agenda) 



c. Presentation of Previous 
Meeting Minutes for Approval 



~~~BERT l. ·LO~ERO 
MAYOR 

THOMAS 1. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

MINUTES 
BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

FEBRUARY 23, 2010 

1. The regular meeting of the Berwyn City Council was called to order by 
Mayor Lovero at 8:00 p.m. Upon the call of the roll, the following 
responded presented: Chapman, Boyajian, Paul, Skryd, Santoy, Polashek, 
Avila, Laureto. 

2. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited and a moment of silence was 
observed for the Heady and Allison Gist family, Cicero fire victims and for 
the speedy recovery of Berwyn Deputy Fire Chief, Paul Gardner, who 
assisted at the fire and was Injured. Also, for the safety of our men and 
women on the street and for our armed forces. 

3. The Open Forum portion of the meeting was announced. The Mayor 
recognized Brian Dillon, 1916 Kenilworth, who expressed regrets for the 
resignation of Berwyn Police Chief Kushner, and congratulated the 
firefighters who were being promoted this evening and also questioned the 
travel of two aldermen to the Czech Republic and asked if city funds were 
being used for their travels. The Mayor responded that no city funds were 
used. Kate Walszak, 3533 Clinton also thanked Chief Kushner for his 
service to the City of Berwyn and would like the new chief to possess the 
same credentials as Kushner. Robin Scharpf, 6842 W. 30th Place also 
thanked Chief Kushner for his service to the community. 

4. The minutes of the regular meeting of the Berwyn City Council and the 
Committee of the Whole of February 9, 2010 were submitted. Thereafter, 
Skryd made a motion, seconded by Avila, to concur and approve as 
submitted. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

S. Chapman made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to suspend the rules and 
bring forth items F-2 and J-1. The motion carried by a voice vote. Item F-
2 is a communication from the Mayor regarding the appointment of 
Lieutenant Gregory DiMenna to the position of Deputy Fire Chief. 
Thereafter, Boyajian made a motion, seconded by Polashek, to concur In 
the appointment. The motion carried by a voice vote . Thereafter, the 
Clerk administered the Oath of Office. 

6. The Berwyn Fire Chief submitted a communIcation regarding the promotion 
of Firefighter, John Diebold to the rank of Lieutenant and the hiring of 



Berwyn City Council 
Febl1.llll:y 23,2010 

David Warta as Probationary Firefighter. Thereafter, Chapman made a 
motion, seconded by Laureto to concur and approve the appointment of 
Lieutenant Diebold as presented. The motion carried by a voice vote. 
Thereafter, the Clerk administered the Oath of Office to Lieutenant, John 
Diebold. Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to 
concur in the hiring of Probationary Firefighter, David Warta. The motion 
carried by a voice vote. Thereafter, the Clerk administered the Oath of 
Office to Probationary Firefighter, David Warta. 

7. The Berwyn Development Corporation submitted a communication 
regarding Roosevelt Road Form Based Code Adoption along with an 
ordinance entitled: 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING CODE OF THE CITY OF 
BERWYN AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF BERWYN TO 
CREATE THE ROOSEVELT ROAD OVERLAY DISTRICT FOR THE CITY 
OF BERWYN, COUNTY OF COOK, STATE OF ILLINOIS 
Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, seconded by Laureto, to concur and 
adopt the ordinance as presented and to authorize the corporate 
authorities to affix their signatures thereto. The motion carried by a 
unanimous roll call vote. 

8. The Mayor submitted a Proclamation honoring retired Berwyn Deputy Fire 
Chief James Zahrabosky for his 33 years of service to the City of Berwyn. 
Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to concur and 
adopt the proclamation as presented. The motion carried by a voice vote 

9. The City Clerk submitted a communication requesting the approval of 
closed Committee of the Whole minutes of December 21, 2009, January 12, 
and January 25, 2010, as amended, and January 26, 2010, as reviewed in 
the closed session of the Committee of the Whole on February 9, 2010. 
Thereafter, Avila made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to concur and 
approve as submitted. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

10. The City CJerk submitted an ordinance entitled: 
AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE THE EDITING AND INCLUSION OF 
CERTAIN ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS AS PARTS OF THE 
VARIOUS COMPONENT CODES OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES; 
AND TO REPEAL ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT 
THEREWITH 
Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, seconded by Santoy, to concur and 
adopt the ordinance as presented and to authorize the corporate 
authorities to affix their signatures thereto. The motion carried by a 
unanimous roll call vote, 

2 



Berwyn City Council 
February 23. 2010 

11. The Fire Chief submItted a communication regarding Engineer Paul Barry. 
Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, seconded by Avila, to concur and 
deny the request as discussed in the closed Committee of the Whole. The 
motion carried by a voice vote. 

12. The City Attorney and the Traffic Engineer submitted a communication 
regarding Condominium Permit Parking at 6430-6436 18th Street along with 
an ordinance entitled: 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING PERMIT PARKING AT CERTAIN 
LOCATIONS ALONG 18TH STREET AND AMENDING CHAPTER 484 OF 
THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BERWYN 
Thereafter, Polashek made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to concur and 
adopt the ordinance as presented and to authorize the corporate 
authorities to affix their signatures thereto. The motion carried by a 
unanimous roll call vote. 

13. The Assistant to the City Administrator submitted a communication with the 
recommendation of changes to the Animal Ordinance 616.07. Thereafter, 
Paul made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to defer the matter for two (2) 
weeks. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

14. The Director of Information Technology submitted a communication 
regarding the Potential Surplus Property/Five (5) Dell Servers. Thereafter, 
Chapman made a motion, seconded by Polashek, to refer to the Finance 
Director for review. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

15. Consent Agenda K-1 through K-9 were submitted. 
K-1-Budget Chairman, payroll for February 17, 2010, $904,633.25 
K-2-Finance Director, revised payroll for January 20, 2010, $856,110.88 
K-3-Budget Chairman, payables for February 23, 2010, $2,318,217.82 
K-4-Bojajian, handicap sign for D. Good, 3119 East Ave, Approve 
K-S-Boyajian, handicap sign for R. Garcia, 3620 Harvey, Approve 
K-6-Boyajian, handicap sign for L. Ruiz, 3027 Euclid, Deny 
K-7-Paul, handicap sign for L. Roman, 2719 Oak Park Ave., Approve 
K-8-Skryd, handicap sign for P. Wishecoby, 2446 Clarence, Approve 
K-9-Laureto, handicap sign for L. Jefferies, 1314 Scoville, Approve 
Thereafter, Avila made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to concur and 
approve by Omnibus Vote Designation. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

16, Chapman announced a Budget Committee meeting, as previously called, 
for Wednesday, February 24, 2010 at 5:00 p.m, 

17. Skryd announced an Administration Committee meeting, as prevIously 
called, for Wednesday, February 24, 2010 at 6:00 p.m. 

3 



. , 
Berwyn City Council 

February 23, 2010 

18. There being no further busIness to come before the meeting, same was, 
after a motion by Laureto, seconded by BoyajIan, to adjourn at the hour of 
8:25 p.m. The motion carrIed by a voice vote. 

RespeCtfUI~ SUb~ 

a J. Pavlik 
erk 

4 



" . 
COMMITIEE OF THE WHOLE 

FEBRUARY 23, 2010 

1. The Committee of the Whole was called to order by Mayor Lovero at 6:00 
p.m. Upon the call of the roll, the following responded present: Chapman, 
Boyajian, Paul, Skryd, Avila, Laureto. Absent: Santoy, Polashek. 

2. Avila made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to excuse Aldermen Santoy 
and Polashek. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

3. Cermak Road Capital Improvements Impact Projects-The Mayor introduced 
Anthony Griffin of the Berwyn Development Corporation and John 
Fitzgerald, of Novotny & Associates who reviewed the Cermak Road TIF, 
Streetscape, and Highway Improvements and the cost estimates. The 
Improvements were broken down Into criterions which are as follows: 

i-Safety and liability 
2-Maintenance 
3-General Improvements 

Griffin stated that there Is not enough funds in the TIF to do all the projects 
and is asking for the City Council to prioritize the list. John Fitzgerald 
continued to review same. 
Alderman Polashek present at 6:20 p.m. 

Item #l-Safety and Liability Improvements would include: 
• Brick Paver Improvements 
• Concrete Improvements 
• Tree Im prove ments 
• Street Lighting Improvements 
• Tree Improvement which include signage and pavements stripping 
• Block Planter Boxes 
• Benches to be Removed and Replaced and lighting and security 

improvements 

Item # 2-Maintenance includes: 
• Pavement Resurfacing 
• Storm Structure Cleaning, which include repaving and resurfacing of 

the Vacin Fairway 
• Striping, this would entail re striping the Vacin Fairway 
• Signage Improvements for the Vacin Fairway 

Item # 3 -General Improvements includes: 
• Streetscape Improvement, which would entail re-powder coating 

some existing benches that are In place 



-. 
Committee of the Whole 

February 23,2010 

• Repainting some of the benches and configuring the layout of some 
of the benches on Cermak Road 

• Newspaper corrals, painting existing bike racks 
• Repairing numerous garbage cans on Cermak Road 

Item #2 under General Improvements would include: 
• Re-powder or repaint street light poles, and street lighting control 

boxes that are either missing or damaged. 
• Lighting Improvement with an alternative option, which would Include 

new lighting along Cermak Road, but Mr. Fitzgerald stated that this 
would take approximately 15 months to get approval from lOOT 

Item # 4-Berwyn Gardens Park 
Item #5-Pavement Improvement, right in and right out of the Vacin 
Fairway entrances to slow traffic and to prevent from being used as a 
thoroughfare 
Itemory 6-Landscape Improvements for Vacln Farrway 
Item 7-Landscape Improvements which may include installing landscaping 
at the entrances, bump outs may be added in the middle of each one of the 
Vacin Fairway areas to improve overall aesthetics 
Item 8-Lighting and security, which would include security cameras and 
call boxes to improve public safety in the Vacin Fairway 

Fitzgerald reviewed the cost estimates 
• Safety and Uability- approximate cost 2,799,510 
• Maintenance-estimated cost is $666,750 
• General improvements-approximate cost $762,615 

Totaling $4,288,875.00 

The Mayor asked for a consensus on each matter and category 
• Item #1 Safety and Liability-Council was in favor 7-0 with no 

objections 
• Item #3-General Improvements-The Mayor stated that this Is 

where the line needs to be drawn. Avila stated that he would like to 
see Item #4, Berwyn Gardens included. Griffin stated that he re ran 
the income numbers for the TIF and that it may be closer to $4.5 
million available, stating that there is a gap of about $1.4 million that 
would be needed to do all projects. 

Alderman Santoy present at 6:35 p.m. 
Griffin noted that we may have additional funding from the Super 
block closing and parcel assemblage on Cermak Road 

After discussion, the remaining members of the Council did not agree with 
Avila to move Item # 4 up on the improvement list. Alderman Paul 

2 



Committee of the Whole 
February 23, 2010 

stated that she would like Item #8-Lighting and Security Improvements 
moved to the Safety and Liability and Install the security cameras, 
Alderman Polashek agreed. The Mayor suggested to do a safety study on 
the Vacin Fairway first. The Mayor asked Nicole Campbell, Traffic Engineer 
of the traffic and safety study could be done in house, she stated, yes. 
The Mayor stated that there was sufficient Input to get started on these 
projects and that the Traffic Engineer will begin to conduct the safety 
study. 

4. Boyajian made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to close the Committee of the 
Whole for personnel, pending litigation and land acquisition at 6:55 p.m. 
The motion carried by a voice vote. 

5. Skryd made a motion, seconded by Avila, to reopen the Committee of the 
Whole at 7 :55 p. m. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

6. Boyajian made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to adjourn the Committee of 
the Whole at 7:55 p,m. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

Respestfully submitted, 

U ! 
a ]. pav/jl 

3 



D. Bid Openings 

Tabulations 



E. Berwyn Development Corp. -

Berwyn Township/HeaIth District 



)erwyn development 
CO RPOR A T ION 

3322 S.Oak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

708.788.8100 

fax: 708.788.0966 

www.berwyn.net 

March 4,2010 

Mayor Robert J Lovero 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 
6700 West 26tl1 Street 
Berwyn,1L 60402 

Re: TIF application - Usa Equilibrium - 6306 W. Cermak Rd. 

Dear Mayor and City COWlcil, 

The applicant is requesting TIP funds for signage at her commercial space. 
The TIP scope of work includes awning, signage and lighting. The 
applicant submitted a Tier I TIP application. To this extent, the applicant is 
requesting TIP funds for the work at this location in order to fill in the 
needed gap. Total project costs are expected to be $3,200. 

The application meets the procedural requirements of the Berwyn TIP 
application which was reviewed by BOC staff and then processed for 
consideration. A 5-year revenue forecast shows that the business plan 
would produce an estimated $43,682 in tax revenue. Her storefront is 
assessed within a larger commercial structure; therefore, the revenue 
forecast estimates property tax on an average square foot basis. Sale's tax 
forecast is generated specifically for the specific storefront. 

The Berwyn Development Corporation's (BDC) Board of Directors and the 
CennaklRoosevelt Road TIF committee have both agreed to recommend 
approval of the below specified TTF monies regarding Usa Equilibrium's 
project costs. 

Berwyn Main Street has worked extensively with the applicant and provided 
the preliminary rendering of the sign age and awning from the flIinois 
Historic Preservation Agency. 

Based on this information, the City Council is being asked to approve TIF 
monies to pay only the eligible costs associated with this project up to a 
maximum of $3,000. As part of our process, SDC staff will validate work 
performed and eligibility prior to any payments. Furthennore, the BDC will 



:>erwyn development 
ORPORATION 

3322 S.Oak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 

Berwyn, IL 60402 

708.788.8100 

fax: 708.788.0966 

www.berwyn.net 

.. 
ensure the applicant will not receive any TIP monies prior to obtaining 
proper City permits. 

With the consent of City Council, Usa Equilibriwn can commence work on 
their project and contribute to the revitalization efforts taking place on 
Cermak Road. 

Respectfully submitted for you consideration, 

1: J\I\th~. Griffin 





)erwyn de elopment 
C OR P ORAT I ON 

3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 

Berwyn, lL 60402 

70B.788.81oo 

fax: 708.788.0966 

www.berwyn.net 

March 4,2010 

Mayor Robert J Lovero 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn,IL 60402 

Re: TIF application - Autre Monde, 6727 W. Roosevelt Rd. 

Dear Mayor and City Council, 

Applicants are requesting TIF funds to purchase and open a new restaurant 
within a vacant building on Roosevelt Road. The concept will have a 
"green" focus, specializing in local and organic fare. They also intend to 
serve alcohol including artisanal wines and craft brews. The TIF scope of 
work includes, but not limited to, building purchase, concrete, plumbing, 
electrical, HV AC, carpentry, insulation, signage, fa~de, glass, fence, tile, 
and roof, which will all lead to a new business opening in Berwyn. The 
applicant submitted a Tier 1I TIF application. To this extent, the applicant is 
requesting TIF funds for redevelopment work at this location in order to fill 
in the needed gap. Total project costs are expected to be $502,000. 

The application meets the procedural requirements of the Berwyn TIF 
application which was reviewed by BOC staff and then processed for 
consideration. A 5-year revenue forecast shows that the business plan 
would produce $178,299 in tax revenue. 

The Berwyn Development Corporation's (BDC) Board of Directors and the 
CennakJRoosevelt Road TIF committee have both agreed to recommend 
approval of the below specified TIF monies regarding Autre Monde's TIP 
eligible project costs. 

Based on this information, the City Council is being asked to approve TIF 
monies to pay only the eligible costs associated with this project up to a 
maximum of $125,000. As part of our process, BOC staff will validate 
work performed and eligibility prior to any payments. Furthermore, the 
SOC will ensure the applicant will not receive any TIP monies prior to 
obtaining proper City permits. 



Jerwyn development 
CORPORATI O N 

3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 
Berwyn,lL 60402 

708.788.8100 

fax: 708.788.0966 

www.berwyn.net 

With the consent of City Council, Autre Monde can commence work on 
their project and contribute to the revitalization efforts taking place on 
Roosevelt Road. 

Respectfully submitted for you consideration, 

it ~. Griffin 



",.---'.'-.", 
~ J ··· .... _u .. __ ·", 

, 

I

f

,-! 
/. 

', .. / I 

~ ! I 
i 

, ... , I 
( )1 
t,,·...1 
i ------------. I 

._--_._------_. ..~ 

o 

o 

o 

lUi/) 
~C\1 
U X 

l
N 

o 

Q 
!-
~ 

o 

o 

o 



liquor Rack 

~Coo/e< 

Down To 
~8asemenl 

Coffee Station 

Espresso Stalion 

Window Pass Thl'Olf9h Ledge 

KITCHEN 
33'XI2' 

'j 

00 00 jfVll\71 
o 0 0 0 ~V\J_ 

Cornrnerclal Stove Fryer 

/ 
Commercial Griddle VPfi9ht Smoker 

~-- -- ~ 
I ! 

Refrigerated Counter 

~[gJ 

Dishwasher 

HiWld Sink 

Window Pass l'hsough Ledge ~0[J 

PflTIO 



R EN 0 ERINGS: I.NT~~lO R/EXTERl 0 R 

-I 

flO D 
~ ,. 

~~ 
O~ 
C:; 
[bJ]~ 

~~ 
~'4: p--

~U 

~ 

JIHfRtOA 

r~ 
I, I 
,. _1 

AR(HITEXlu~ O~SK>N 



F. Reports and Communications 

From The Mayor 



The City of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Proclamation 

Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

WHEREAS, after serving the citizens of Berwyn since his appointment on 
January 24,2006, Chief William Kushner has resigned his position with the 
Berwyn Police Department effective March 6,2010; and 

WHEREAS, during his tenure, Chief Kushner has garnered the respect of the 
citizens of Berwyn by serving with professionalism and an obvious dedication to 
the job and community; and 

WHEREAS, Chief Kushner was instrumental in fonning the Near West Suburban 
Gang Force (W.E.D.G.E) which has brought together public safety leaders from 
surrounding communities and created a combined ~:ffort to fight crime; and 

WHEREAS, Chief Kushner's endless list of resources has been instrumental in 
fostering positive relationships with all jurisdictions involved in the public safety 
sector. 

NO W, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOL YED that I, Robert J. Lovero, Mayor of Berwyn, proclaim 
March 9,2010 as William Kushner Day in Berwyn and together with the citizens of Berwyn thank 
Chief Kushner for his dedication and loyalty to our community and wish him best wishes in his future 
endeavors. 

Entered upon the records of the City of Berwyn this 91h day of March, 2010. 



/~ . . 
'THE CITY OF BERWYN Robert J. Lovero 

Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

March 4, 2010 

Members of City Council 

Re: Chief William Kushner's Buy Back 

Council Members: 

Please find attached a request from Chief William Kushner pertaining to his request for a 
buy back. While I have no problem with the vacation and accrued sick time request, I can 
not unilaterally agree to the accrued compensatory time. Please be advised that the police 
chief position is not part of the collective bargaining unit, nor has any police 
administration verified this request as indicated in the letter. Upon my conversation with 
Chief Kushner he has indicated that he has documented all compensatory time on his 
private calendars, since former Mayor Michael O'Connor asked him not to put it on his 
time sheets. 

Regarding compensation time, please also be aware that I have not been able to verify 
any written agreement or policy which allows the payment at this time. Chief Kushner 
has disclosed that he had a "verbal agreement" with former Mayor Michael O'Connor 
that he would be paid for compensatory time. While the previous Mayor condelTUled past 
administrations for providing this type of compensation, I have no reason to not believe 
Chief Kushner. In fact, while searching files for a written agreement. I did locate the 
attached e-mail from Chief Kushner to Mayor O'Connor who then forwarded it to former 
Director of Human Resources, Pat Segal. This document was placed in Chief Kushner's 
personnel file with no statement of confinnation of an agreement pertaining to 
compensation time. The e-mail, sent after the mayoral election and prior to the 
installation of this administration, seems to reflect Chief Kushner's understanding that an 
oral agreement was in place. 

While I do not believe that a precedent should be set, nor do I agree that compensatory 
time is warranted, in light of our fiscal condition and this administration's stance in 
eliminating waste, I do believe in honoring an agreement. I cannot say that Chief Kushner 
is undeserving and firmly believe that he relied on the word of former Mayor Michael 
O'Connor, Instead of upholding his word and buying him out yearly, Chief Kushner was 
allowed to accumulate this time over a four year period, It is now up to this Council to 
determine if this payment should be made. Please understand that. while I have been 
"thrown under the bus", so to speak, over the Chief's resignation. I believe strongly in 

(i700 \'\h;1 211" SW'{'t , lin \\ ',VIl, 11IIIlois (i(l40l·07111 '1)o\l'pllDIlI': (70B) 7flll·2hhO [',\~ : (701i I 71W-2h7," • 1\' 1\' \\' ,ht·f\""I1·iLgm' 



THE CITY OF BERWYN Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

upholding an agreement. I, therefore, am asking this COtIDcil to approve the payment to 
William Kushner, as per the attached request. 

As a side note, the resignation of Chief Kushner came as no surprise to me. Chief 
Kushner had mentioned that over the lac;t several months. he had begun applying at 
various municipalities. Therefore, I found it necessary to ensure that the police 
department and citizens would not be left without this key leadership, In order to fill the 
position in a timely manner, I have assembled a committee to interview applicants for the 
position of Chief of Police, I know that we will choose someone who will provide our 
City with positive leadership and a commitment 10 make Berwyn a safer and more 
prosperous community, 

Robert J. 
Mayor 
City of Berwyn 

(000 W(!:;I 2(i" Sm'(!!, HnWYll, lllil1oi:; ()(HO,!·()701 ' li; ]( : phllIlC, (701l) 7Im-2M() 1",1);: (70a ) 71\1l·2(\7~. lI' \\'lI' . h(~n\'\')\·il.~o\' 



Pat Ao Segel 
- ._. __ • _ __ • •. _. _ _ 0 _ _ .-_ ___ • __ .. -._-- ._---

To: Mayor O'Connor 

Subject: RE: Accumulated time 

From: Mayor O'Connor 
Sent: Tuesday, April 28, 2009 7:44 PM 
To: Pat A. Segel 
Subject: FW: Accumulated time 

From: William R. Kushner 
Sent: Tuesday, April 28, 2009 7:17 PM 
To: Mayor O'Connor 
Subject: Accumulated time 

-- --_ .. _--

rC:1l$c 1 VI I 

--- ----._-

- ... - ._- .. ----

I'm not certain if this matters (or anything; I have tracked my hours worked, and currently have 561 hours of 
uncompensated overtime. Also, I have the 3 weeks vacation unused for 2009 so far. Should something be 
placed in my personnel file? 

William R. Kushner 
Chief of Police 
Berwyn Police Department 
6401 West 31st Street 
Berwyn IL, 60402 

4129/2009 



We SsNe lind Protect 

February 23, 2010 

Brian Pabst 
City Administrator 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

RE: BuyBack 

Dear Mr. Pabst: 

y 

o IE 
6401 West 31 st Street 

Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0733 
Phone (708) 795-5600 

Fax (708) 795-5627 Emergency 9-1-1 

As you are aware, my resignation from the Berwyn Police Department will be effective March 6, 
2010. Under the terms of the current Collective Bargaining Agreement, I am requesting the 
following Buy Back. The amounts have been verified by the Police Administration. 

2010 Vacation Time 15 Days x 8 Hours ;::: 120 hours @ 53.82 per hour = $6,458.40 

Please charge these expenditures to the 2010 Budget Payroll Account #100-2()'SOOO-01. 

Accrued Sick Time 40 Days x 8 Hours = 320 hrs @ 53.82 per hour = $17,222.40. 
Accrued Compensatory Time: 573.5 hours @53.82 per hour = $30,865.77. 

Please charge these expenditures to the 2010 Budget Police Buy Back Acet. #100-20-5030. 

Respectfully, 

Cc: Mayor Robert 1. Lovero 
Finance Director John Wysocki 



, 

I 
ITY OF BERWYN Robert J. Lovero 

Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

March 4,2010 

Members of City Council 

Re: 911 Board Appoinunent 

Council Members: 

I am seeking to appoint Deputy Chief Paul Gardner to the Emergency Telephone Systems 
911 Board, to fill the opening left by the retirement of James Zahrobsky. DC Gardner has 
been directly involved with the Computer aided dispatch program and the integration of 
the Firehouse software program. DC Gardner will serve the remainder of the term which 
expires November 27,2010. 

I would ask that City Council concur in my recommendation of Deputy Chief Paul 
Gardner and approve the appointment. 

... 
Respectfully. 

JO~~ 
Robert J. Levere 
Mayor 
City of Berwyn 

fi700 Vest 2ti " So-cet , B(!rwy 11 , IIIIIlOJ!, (;0402·()701 ll:I(~phOlH:: (701!) 7/11!-2(i{iO I'ilx: (70n) 70 -2/175. W\\'I\' hl:rwj'll-il.gov 



G. Reports and Communication From 
The City Clerk 



I. Reports and Communications From 
Aldermen, Committees other Boards 

and Commissions 



\ 

Robert J. Lovero 'r8.y
or 

A Century of Pro gre 88 with Pride 

Michele D. Skryd 
Alderman 4th Ward 

6700 West 26th Street Berwyn, Illinois 6{)402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2670 
www.berwyn-i1.gov 

March 5, 2010 

Hon. Robert J. Lovero, Mayor 
Aldennan of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W. 26111 Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

RE: Chapter 859: Newspaper Vending Machines 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The unsightly abundance of public dispenser is disturbing. There are too many of these units bunched all over the city. 
In front of the Berwyn Post Office alone there are a total of 13 . There are dispensers for Auto Trader Latino.com, The 
Employment Source, Jobs, Home and Farms. Illinois Auto and RV. Homes and Land Magazine, and The Real Estate 
Book. The length states they should not take up a space longer than eight feet, in this area and many other locations of 
these boxes this length is exceeded. These boxes are not coin operated; therefore they are not vending machines. 

859.0 I Definitions 

Newspaper vending machine. Any self-service coin-operated box, container, storage unit or other dispenser designed, 
intended, used, placed, installed or maintained for the display and safe distribution of newspapers, periodicals or other 
publications. 

It would be my recommendation to amend this ordinance by deleting the words - periodicals and other publications. 

Once the amendment is approved the collectors office should direct a letter to the companies of the non-compliance 
boxes for removal with a deadline for such and a fee to be assessed if the city is forced to have them removed. 

It would also be my recommendation to refer 801 .13 (YY) number (2) to the Business License and Taxation Com ittee 
for review. 

Respectfully, 

M~b.~ 
Michele D. Skryd 
Aldennan 4111 Ward 



Be~ ILs Code of Ordinances 
PART EIGHT: BUSINESS REGULATION AND TAXATION CODE 

TITLE TWO: BUSINESS REGULATION 
CHAPTER 859: NEWSPAPER VENDING MACHINES 

CHAPTER 859: NEWSPAPER VENDING MACHINES 

Section 

859.0 I Definitions 

rl1gc 1 Ul .., 

859.02 Permit required; notification of City Collector regarding installation, relocation or removal 
of machines 

859.03 Permit application 

859.04 Conditions for permit acceptance; fee; duration 

859.05 Standards for maintenance and installation of machines on sidewalks or parkways 

859.06 Location and placement of machines on public rights-of-way 

859.99 Penalty 

Cross-reference: 

Business regulation certificates, see Ch. 802 

Coin-operated amusement devices, see Ch. 827 

Coin-operatedfood and beverage vending machines, see Ch. 828 

Licenses andfees generally, see Ch. 801 

Newsstands, see Ch. 858 

§ 859.01 DEFINITIONS. 

For the purpose of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly indicates or requires a 
different meaning. 

DISTRIBUTOR. The person responsible for placing and maintaining a newspaper vending machine in a public 
right-of-way. 

NEWSPAPER VENDING MACHINE. Any self-service or coin-operated box, container, storage unit or other 
dispenser designed, intended, used, placed, installed or maintained for the display and sale or distribution of 
newspapers, periodicals or other publications. 

PARKWAY. The area between the sidewalk and the curb of any street, and where there is no sidewalk, that area 
between the edge of the roadway and the property line adjacent thereto. The term PARKWAY shall also include any 
area within a roadway which is not open to vehicular travel. 

httn: Ilwww.amleQal.comlnxtl gateway .dlllIllinois/berwyniparteightbusinessregulationandtaxationco/titletwo... 3/4/20 I 0 



rage::: 1. Ul ~ 

ROADWA Y. The portion of a street improved, designed or ordinarily used for vehicular travel. 

SIDEWALK, Any' surface provided for the exclusive use of pedestrians. 

STREET. All that area dedicated to public use for public street purposes and shall include but not be limited to 
roadways, parkways, alleys and sidewalks. 

(Ord. 94-25, passed 6-28-1994) 

§ 859.02 PERMIT REQUIRED; NOTIFICATION OF CITY COLLECTOR REGARDING 
INSTALLATION, RELOCATION OR REMOVAL OF MACfDNES. 

No person shall erec~ place, maintain or operate, on any public street or sidewalk, or in any other public way or 
place, in the city, any newspaper vending machine without first having obtained a pennit therefor from the City 
Collector and without first providing the City Collector, in writing, with the exact location of the machine. One pennit 
may be issued to include any number of newspaper vending machines, and the pennit shall be signed by the applicant. 
Distributors must notify the City Collector within three business days of the installation, relocation or removal of any 
newspaper vending machine and the exact locations of all the machines then currently located in the city. 

(OreL 94-25, passed 6-28-1994) 

§ 859.03 PERMIT APPLICATION. 

Application for a pennit shall be made, in writing, to the City Collector upon a form as shall be provided by him or 
her, and shall contain the name and address ofthe applicant and the specific locations of all existing and proposed 
ne\;VSrap~r vending machines, and the application shall be signed by the applicant. 

(Ord. 94-25, passed 6-28-1994) 

§ 859.04 CONDITIONS FOR PERMIT ACCEPTANCE; FEE; DURATION. 

(A) As an express condition for the acceptance of a pennit, the permittee shall agree to indemnify and save 
harmless the city and its officers, directors and employees against any loss, liability or damage, including expenses and 
costs for bodily or personal injury and for property damage, sustained by any person as a result of the installation, use 
or maintenance ofa newspaper vending machine within the city. 

(B) Permits shall be issued, and previously issued permits shall be amended, to provide for the installation of a 
newspaper vending machine without prior inspection of the location, but the newspaper vending machine, and the 
installation, use or maintenance thereof, shall be conditioned upon observance of the provisions of these Codified 
Ordinances and reasonable rules and regulations as may be established by the Director of Public Works. Permits shall 
be issued within two business days after the application has been filed. An annual permit fee as provided in § 801.13 is 
required. 

(C) The permits shall be valid for one year and shall be renewable pursuant to the procedure for original 
applications and upon payment of the penni t fee provided in § 801.13. 

(Ord. 94-25, passed 6-28-1994) 

§ 859.05 STANDARDS FOR MAINTENANCE AND INST ALLA TION OF MACHINES ON 

httn:/ /www.amleRal.comlnxtlgateway .dlllI llinoislberwyniparteightbusinessregulationandtaxationco/ti tletwo... 3/4/20 I 0 



ragt: .J Ul "t 

SIDEWALKS OR PARKWAYS. 

Any newspaper vending machine which, in whole or in part:, rests upon, in or over any public sidewalk or parkway. 
shall comply with the following standards. 

(A) No person shall place, install or maintain a newspaper vending machine on a public way if the newspaper 
vending machine exceeds 26 inches in width, 26 inches in depth or 50 inches in height, provided, however, that a coin 
slot not exceeding ten inches in width, ten inches in depth or 25 inches in height, may be attached to the top of the 
newspaper vending machine, as long as the combined height of the newspaper vending machine and coin slot does not 
exceed 65 inches. 

(B) Each newspap~r vending machine shall be equipped with a coin-return mechanism to permit a person using 
the machine to secure an immediate refund in the event that he or she is unable to receive the publication paid for. The 
coin-return mechanism shall be maintained in good working order. 

(C) Each newspaper vending machine shall have affixed to it, in a readily visible place so as to be seen by anyone 
using the newspaper vending machine, and in letters and numbers no less than one-half inch in height, a notice setting 
forth the name and address of the distributor and the telephone number of a working telephone service to call to report 
a malfunction, to secure a refund in the event of a malfunction of the coin-return mechanism or to issue citations for 
any violation of this chapter. 

(0) Each nc\ ... 'spaper vending machine shall be maintained in a neat and clean condition and in good repair at all 
times. Specifically, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, each newspaper vending machine shall be 
serviced and maintained so that: 

(1) It is reasonably free of dirt and grease; 

(2) It is reasonably free of chipped, faded, peeling and cracked paint in the visible painted areas thereof; 

(3) It is reasonably free of rust and corrosion in the visible unpainted metal areas thereon; 

(4) The clear plastic or glass parts thereof, if any, through which the publications therein are viewed, are 
unbroken and reasonably free of cracks, dents, blemishes and discoloration; 

(5) The paper or cardboard parts or inserts thereof are reasonably free of tears, peeling or fading; and 

(6) The structural parts thereof are not broken or unduly mi sshapen. 

COrci. 94-25, passed 6-28-1994) 

§ 859.06 LOCATION AND PLACEMENT OF MACHINES ON PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY. 

Any newspaper vending machine which rests in whole or in part upon or on any portion of a public right-of-way, or 
which projects onto, into or over any part of a public right-of-way, shall be located and placed in accordance with the 
following provisions. 

(A) No newspaper vending machine shall be used or maintained which projects onto, into or over any part of the 
roadway of any public street, or which rests wholly or partly along or over any portion of the roadway of any public 
street. 

(8) No ne\\'spapel' vending machine shall be permitted to rest upon, in or over any public sidewalk or parkway, 
when the installation, use or maintenance of the machine endangers the safety of persons or property; when the site or 

htto:/ /www.amlegaLcomlnxtlgateway .dlllIllinoislberwyn/paI1ei ghtbusinessregulati on and taxationco/titIetwo... 31412010 



ocation of the machine is used for public utility purposes, public transportation purposes or other goverrunental uses; 
)r when the machine unreasonably interferes with or impedes the flow ofpedestrian or vehicular traffic, including any 
legally parked or stopped vehicle, the ingress into or egress from any residence or place of business, or the use of poles, 
posts, traffic signs or signals, hydrants, mailboxes or other objects permitted at or near the location. 

(C) No newspaper verxling machine shall be chained, bolted or otherwise attached to any fixture located in the 
public right-of-way, except to other newspaper vending machines. 

(D) Newspaper vending machines may be placed next to each other, provided that no group of newspaper 
vending machines shall extend for a distance of more than eight feet along a curb, and a space of not less than three feet 
shall separate each group of newspaper vending machines. 

(E) (1) No newspaper vending machine shall be placed, installed, used or maintained: 

(a) Within three feet of any marked crosswalk; 

(b) Within three feet of any fire hydrant, fire call box, police call box or other emergency facility; 

(c) At any location whereby the clear space for the passageway of pedestrians is reduced to less than four 
feet; 

(d) On any public area improved with a lawn, flowers, shrubs, trees or other landscaping; 

(e) Within 100 feet of any other newspaper vending machine on the same side of the street in the same 
block containing the same issue or edition of the same publication; and 

Cf) Within four feet of the nearest curb or roadway. 

(2) The provisions provided in this division hereof shall not apply if compliance with the provisions would 
prohibit the placement of newspaper vending machines for a distance of 150 feet on the same side of the street on the 
same block . 

. (Ord. 94-25, passed 6-28-1994) 

§ 859.99 PENALTY. 

Whoever violates any provision of this chapter shall be fined not less than $50 nor more than $200 for each offense. 
Each day that the violation occurs, and each violation involving different newspaper vending machines, shall constitute 
a separate offense. 

(Ord. 94-25, passed 6-28-1994) 

Disclaimer: 
This Code of Ordinances andlor any other documents that appear on this site may not reflect the most current legislation adopted by the Municipality. Ame(ican 
Legal Publishing Corporation provides tnese documents for informational purposes only. These documents Should not be relied UpOf\ as the definitive authonty for 
local legislation. Additionally. the formatting and pagination of the posted dOCl.lments varies from the formatting and pagination of the offiCial copy. The official 
printed copy of a Code of Ordinances should be consulted prior to any action being taken. 

For further information regarding the official version of any of this Code of Ordinances or other documents posted on thiS sile . please o:lntact the Municipality 
directty or contact American Legal Publishing toll· free al 800-44f>.S588. 

@ 2010 American Legal Publishing Corporaoon 
tecbsuoport@amleQal.com 

1.800.445.5588. 

h ttn:/ /www.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway .dl VIllinoislberwyn/parteightbusinessregulationandtaxationco/ti tletwo... 3/4/201 0 



25 Licenses and Fees Generally § 801.13 

(XX) MlWic stores. The annual license fee is $50, plus one-half of the applicable business regulation 
:ertincate tel e, as set forth in Cfiapter troZ. 

(YY) NeVt vspaper and magazine sales and newspaper vending machines. 

Fee 

$25 

(2) The annual permit fee for the installation of newspaper vending machines is $100. 

(ZZ) Nur sing homes. The annual license fee is $250, plus $2 per bed. 

tAAA') "relUllers arul solicitors. The annual license fee is $75. 

(BBB) Pet shops. The annual license fee is $50, plus one-half of the applicable business regulation 
certificate fee, as set forth in Chapter 802. 

(CCC) Pho, toeiectric (coin-operated) amusement devices. The annual license fee is $25 per device. 

(DDD) Poo. tographers; photographic supply stores. The annual license fee is $50, plus one-half of the 
applicable bu ISineSS regulation certificate fee, as set forth in Chapter 802. 

(EEE) Printing establishments. The annual license fee is $50, plus one-half of the applicable business 
regulation certificate fee, as set forth in Chapter 802. 

(FFF) Scavengers and refuse removal. The license fee is $300 per year, $150 for the last six months 
or"a year or :t;"i35 per month for the last three months of a year. 

(OOG) Shoe ~ stores. The annual license fee is $50, plus one-half of the applicable business regulation 
certificate fee:, as set forth in Chapter 802. 

(HHH) Sporting goods stores. The annual license fee is $50, plus one-half of the applicable business 
regulation certificate fee, as set forth in Chapter 802. 

(ll) Stationery and book stores. The annual license fee is $50, plus one-half of the applicable 
dusmess regulation certificate fee, as set forth in Chapter 802. 

(111) Tabir? Waler dealers. The annual license fee is $50. plus an additional $5 for each employee over 
one. 

(KKK) Taxicab drivers. The annual license fee is $10. 



R~.Lovero 
/ ~ayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Michele D. Skryd 
Alderman 4th Ward 

6700 West 26,b Street Berwyn, TIlinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (708) 788'2660 Fax: (70S) 788,2675 
www.berwyn.il.gov 

March 5,2010 

Hon. Robert J. Lovere, Mayor 
Aldennan of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

RE: 2200 Block of East Avenue 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The 2200 block of East A venue is a posted resident penni t parking only block. S1. Odilo church is located at 
23rd and East Avenue. There is only one sign on the 2200 block that signifies the parking restriction. Many 
of the parishioners while attending Mass have received parking violations due to the location of the signage. 

It would be my recommendation to post additional signs on both the east and west sides of the 2200 block and 
refer to the traffic engineer for proper placement. 

Respectfully, 

fY\~ G . ~ 
Michele D. Skryd 
Alderman 41h Ward 



The C, ~erwyn 
A Century of Progress with Pride 

Rafael Avila 
7th Ward Alderman 

Berwyn, Illinois 60402-()701 Telephone: (708) 749-6407 Fax: (70S) 788-2675 
www.berwyn·il.gov 

March 5, 2010 

Hon. Mayor Robert J. Lovero and 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Re: Modifications to AztecAmerica Bank: 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Please be advised that Carlos X. Montoya., President and CEO of AztecAmerica Bank, 
has submitted revised plans for the proposed modifications to his facility. The plans 
include construction of a two lane drive through on the west side of the bank, new 
lighting, new signage on three sides of his building, and some new landscaping to 
beautify the exterior of the facility. 

Traffic engineer Nicole Campbell, Building Director Chuck Lazzara and I met with 
Mr. Montoya's staff, to review the proposed revisions. All of the traffic flow and 
construction issues were discussed and addressed to everyone's satisfaction. 

In order to construct the drive through, they will have to eliminate their six parking 
spaces currently used by the bank. employees_ This means that the bank will have to 
purchase, from the City, parking passes so that their employees may park on the vacin 
fairway. This will produce additional revenue for the City. 

After review of the cbanges and since Mr. Montoya has closed the Riverside location 
consequently making the Berwyn location their headquarters, I am authorizing this work. 

Therefore, I respe<:tfully ask that the request for the modifications to the Aztec America 
Bank be put on the City Council Agenda for March 9, 2010 meeting and for your 
concurrence as well. 

Rafae Avila 
Aldennan 7th Ward 



e(~') SITE PLAN 

I 

"~" I ~~Et 

NfW.· p~, ----
tm:IlPe 

~ 

, , i I 
, i . ' II~ 
_______ elGSTI~G~ flAlJ ---

?ARlONG LC7I 
I'IOWOAIq 

UWE OF 3 EXl5T1NG 
sP .. CES TO ae REl'OVED 

I'rIEWCU.AB 
i 

, 

1 
j 
I 

121.00' 

127.00' 

ALLEY 

Wallin· Gamez 
~ ~T~I ~ I -: '~r-I 

7" s...r. 0aII>0n0 5 __ SUIt l1l)I; 

CNl:llgo ..... 6C1rJ1&.11a" 
~ 31l-'n"102 • F: :Jt~"" 

E:-........._ 

EXIS1Ni f.S1OA'I' 
IIASONRY EMlDHG 

!2.217 B.f. FOOlP!IN1) 

'j 
/1 

~ 

o 
ILri 
(") 

i , 
! 

EXIS1l.aG s lOew ... ( 
&CUR8 

HSW UlHQSCAPtn 
1$1.»10 

w 
~ 
:z 
UJ 

~ 
:::.:::: 
a:: « a... 
:::.:::: « 
o 

• 

.. 

AZTEC AMERICA BANK ~'T ' ~ ... 

2134-36 S. OAK PARK AVE S K2 
BERWYN , IL. 60402 



~:'~OfBerWYn Rafael Avila 
7

tb Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

March 5, 2010 

Barwyn, Dllno1a 80402·0'701 Telephone: (708) '749-8407 Fax: (708) 788·2873 
www.berwyn-U.gov 

Han. Mayor Robert J. Lovero and 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, TL 60402 

Re: Schedule of Street Cleaning for 16th Street: 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Please be advised that I have received numerous complaints about the tremendous 
amount of debris along the parkway and street from Harlem to Oak Park on 16111 Street. 
Upon my investigation, I noticed that currently there are no signs listing the schedule of 
street sweeping for 161h Street. I discovered that from Harlem Avenue to Lombard Street 
the process of street sweeping is to sweep when possible and only where there are no 
parked vehicles. This is the main reason why there is a 10t of trash on this street. 

Therefore, I respectfully ask that Public Works is instructed to place 16th Street from 
Harlem Avenue to Lombard Street on a regular "Street Cleaning" schedule and that the 
appropriate signs are order and erected in order to facilitate the street sweeping. 

I ask that this request be put on the City Council Agenda for March 9, 2010 meeting and 
for your concurrence as well . 

Sincerely. 

Rafael A vila 
Alderman i h Ward 



Th City of Berwyn .. .. . 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Nora Laureto 
8th Ward Alderman 

G700 West 2&h Street Berwyn, Illinois G0402~0701 Telephone: (708) 749'6408 Fax: (708) 788'2676 
www.berwyn·iLgov 

March 4, 2010 

Mayor Robert Lovero 
Members of the City Council 
6700 W. 26th St. 
BeIWY~ IL 60402 

Dear Mayor and Member of the City Council: 

The Building Zoning and Planning Committee met on February 22, 2010. Those in attendance were 
Aldennen Chapman, Santoy and Laureto along with Mr, Doug Walega. The meeting was called to 
order at 6:10 p.m. Discussion was held concerning the referral to the committee to discuss an issue 
regarding donner addition to bomes. Clarification was needed concerning the measurement of dormer 
additions. Currently, as per the Building Department, original front and rear windows which are part 
of the attic area are included in the 400 square feet measurement. !twas the opinion of Building 
Director Chuck Lazarra that this area is minimal and not "livable space". Therefore he did not feel 
that these small areas should be included in the 400 square foot measurement for donner additions. 
Discussion was held by the committee and agreed with the opinion of the Building Director. The 
meeting was adjourned at 6:25 p.m. Since this ordinance is in the local building code we do not have 
to have a public hearing with regards to this issue. Therefore it would be my motion to refer this 
communication to the legal department for amendment of the ordinance to state that original front and 
rear window attic areas will DOt be included in the 400 square feet allowed for donner additions. 

Sincerely, 

'~~ 
Nora Laureto 
Alderman 8110 Ward 
City of Berwyn 



The City of Berwyn 
". .. 

Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century 01 Progren with Pride 
6700 Weat se'" street Bel'wTJ1. IWnots 60408-0701 Telapllone: ('708) '788-2880 Fax: ('708) 788-28'1G 

-.banryn-ll..goY 

Nora Laureto 
glh Ward Alderman 

Date: February 22,2010 
Mayor Robert J. Levero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

A meeting of the Building IZoningIPlanning Commission Hearing was held 
On February 22, 2010 at ___ --::6:..:...;: 1~0c....tp"",,.m=-. ______ _ 

Those is attendance were Alderman Laureto (Chair), (Members)Aldermen Chapman 
and Santoyo Also. Doug Walega, resident 

The matter discussed was referral item# 13 dated January 12,2010 in regards to: 
Change to Chapter #14 regarding Donners. After discussion and input from the Building DirectoL 
Chuck Lazzara via e-mai I 

It is the recommendation of the committee that the existing front and rear donners square footage is 
minimal and not living space. Therefore. the ordinance should be amended to read that a 400 square 
foot donner may be built in addition to the existing dorner not including the minimal square footage. 

Voting Aye: Laureto, Chapman, Santoy 

Voting Nay:_~ ___________ _ 

Adjourned: 6:20 p.m. 

Nora Laureto-Chainnan 
Cesar Santoy-Member 
Nona Chapman-Member 



• City 01 Berwyn Robert J. Loven 
Mayor 

A Ceatury 01 Props __ with PrIde 
8700 Wea' .. 8tftet Berwyn. IIl1no18 80402.()9'Ol 'l'lIlepbone: (708) '788-1660 hx: ('708) '788-8875 

www.berwyn-u.crov 

Date February 22. 2010 

Margaret Paul 
3rd Ward Aldennan 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
A meeting of the ___ ~_....:P,-"ar~k~i.:.:.ngCL..=:&::...T~raffi=~c",--""C;::<..om=m~i.:.:tt:.:ee,,--_was held 

on February 22. 201Q at 6:45 pm - Berwyn City Hall 

• 

Those in attendance were: Aldermen Paul (Chair). (Members)Laureto, Nicole Campbel1 

The matter discussed was Section 873.16 of the Municipal Code; Addition to City 
Website regarding the education of the public regarding traffic control devises. and left 
to restriction at 13th St. and Harlem 

It was the recommendation of the committee that; review of certificate of necessity for an 
additional cab company is deferred to the next meeting; that addition to city's Website is 
deferred to the next meeting; that need for No Left Turn signage was reviewed and 
committee concurs with the Traffic Engineer to do a review and srudy period with temporary 
signage with final determination as to further action deferred to conclusion of stud~ 

Voting Aye:_2=--~ __ _ 
Nays: 0 
Excused: Polashek 
Adjourned: 7:30 p.m. 

Margaret Paul-Chairman 
Nora Laureto-Member 
Theodore Polaske-Member 



Thomas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 2&h street BeTwyn, D.linois 60402-0701 Telephone: (70B) 788-2660 Fax; (708) 788-2676 

www.berwyn-ilgov 

Nona Chapman 
1 sf Ward Aldennan 

Date: l-25-2010 
Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

A meeting of the _____ --=B"-.:u=d::og=et:.....:CO=mm==itte=e ____ ~ __ was held 

On \-25-2010 at City Hall Conference Room @ 5:08 p.m. ---------------------------------------
Those in attendance were: See Attached sign in sheet 

------------------~~-----------------

The matter discussed was referral item# dated in regards to: _____ _ 
Review some oftbe recommended reductions in some of the line jtems in Police. Fire and 

the Pllblic Works 20 lOB, 'dget 

It is the recommendation of the committee that The Budget committee will refer to Finance Manager 
and City Admjnistrator fur implementation of police and PI,hl;c Works red'lCtions 

Voting Aye: ______ 3 _____ _ 

Voting Nay: ____ O ___ ~ __ 

Adjourned: ___ 6_:_0_4-,-p_"m_" -~--~ 

Nona Chapman-Chairman 
Rafael Avila-Member 
Jeffrey Boyajian-Member 



, ~ 

Mayor 

J 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26J60 Stree~ Berwyn, 11llnoia 60402-0701 Telephone: (70s) 788'2660 Fax: (708) 788'2675 

www.be:rwyn-agov 

Nona Chapman 
lit Ward Alderman 

Date: 2-24-2010 
Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

A meeting of the _____ --=B=u=d""get;;..::......:=CO=.=m=ml=·=tte=e=--_____ was held 

On 2-24-2010 t City Hall Conference Room @ 5:09 p.m. a. ________________________________ ~ ____ __ 

Those in attendance were: See Attached sign in sheet 
-------------~----~--------~-------------

The matter discussed was referral item# dated in regards to: _____ _ 
Reviewed the Draft of the 2010 Budget presented by John Wysocki, discussed the time line of the public notice and 

hearing, and the adoption process/timeline of the budget. Budget Committee to review budget and provide 
questions or comments to Budget Chair and Finance Director no later than 5 PM on Monday, March I, 2010. 

It is' the recommendation of the committee that The Budget committee will refer the Draft 2010 
budget to the COW for March 9th meeting and the Budget committee will continue to hold monthly meetin.&.s for 

observation f:r examination of the operating cost &- income in 20 10. 
Voting Aye: ______ 2 _____ ~ 

Voting Nay: ____ O _____ _ 

Adjourned: ___ 5_:4_3.-Jpl-._m~. ___ ~_ 

Nona Chapman-Cb.afrman 
Rafael Avila-Member 
Jeffrey Boyajian-Member 



J. Staff Reports 



CITY OF BERWYN 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING (Date) 03/09/10 

Deferred Communication 

Agenda Item J-1 is a Deferred Communication from C C Meeting dated 02/23/10.!!mn #13 

FROM _______ M~s_i~5t_an~t_m_fu~e~C~I~·~_A_d_m~in~is~trn_t_o_r _______________ __ 

Re: ______ R_e_co_m_m_e_n_d_at_io_n_o_f c_h_a--,ng,,--e~5_to_A_n_im_a_I_O_rd_in_a_n_ce,----6_1_6_.0_7 __ _ 

Templete -.xls 



The City of Berwyn Ruth E. Volbre 
Asst. to City 

, ~Mdwmstrati~.~_._ .. 
DATE -ffi-2-Lw.!JL ___ _ 
DISPOSITION 

A Century of Progre8S with Pride 
_._._---

Date: February J 9, 20 10 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Ruth Volbre, Assistant to the City AdminislJ'ator 
---. - - . .- .- .--.-.... _.,......-

Re: Recommendation of Changes to Animal Ordinance 616.07 

Mayor and Council: 

In the fall of 2009, I was contacted by our current provider of animal impoundment regarding their intent on increasing their 
rates drastically_ Since the City hasn't had a contract with the company for at least seven years, I decided on going out to bid 
for this service. My intent was to find a shelter that was nearby for the local citizens, reasonably priced with adequate space 
for our appro){imately 360 animals impounded yearly. and with a reputation for treating animals humanely. Unfortunately, 
we only received two responses. One of the bids was incomplete and the other was too costly. 

I then contacted the Town of Cicero which operates their own no·kill animal shelter to see if we could work on an 
intergovernmental agreement for our impoundment services. This agreement is currently being drafted. It will be a benefit to 
both Berwyn and Cicero for numerous reasons: as neighboring communities, staff time to drive to the shelter will be less; 
Berwyn animals are periodically located and impounded in Cicero, humane treatment, etc. An Intergovernmental Agreement 
will be placed on the following councilllgenda for approval. Per City Council's approval of a new policy and 
Intergovernmental Agreement, we have revised our animal ordinance to encompass the shared practices and policies (see 
attached). 

Our new ordinance includes the procedures that our Animal ConlJ'ol Officers currently employ regarding the documentation 
and notification of owners when the animals have licenses, chips, or tags to identify them. We would also be extending our 
holding time from the current five days to seven days which will match that of Cicero's. This would allow more time (0 

identify the owners to better ensure the retum of said animal . 

The new procedure will also provide the animal control officers with direction regarding animals that ace injured when the 
owner cannot be contacted. Moreover, under the new policy, we would improve our handling of animals that are not 
returned. Por example, via this new policy, we would be promoting adoption as a humane method of dealing with unclaimed 
animals. 

All of the recommended changes adhere with our new partnership concerning Cicero's no kill shelter, thereby providing 
humane treatment to all of Berwyn's animals . 

RecQmmendatJon; Approval of the new procedure as outlined on the attached ordinance. 

Thank you for your consideration of my recommendations. 

Respectfully, 

Ruth Volbre 
Assistant to the City Administrator 

6700 West 20· Street Berwyn. Illinois 604<l2-O701 Telephooe-l (70s) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788-2S67 www.berwyn.ll.gov 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER __ _ 

AN ORDINANCE REPLACING SECTION (A) OF CHAPTER 616.07 
OF THE BERWYN CODE REGARDING THE IMPOUNDMENT OF 

DOGS AND CATS PROVISIONS OF THE CITY OF BERWYN , 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

ROBERT J. LOVERO, Mayor 
THOMAS J. PA VLIK, City Oerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 
JEFFREY G. BOYAJIAN 

MARGARET PAUL 
MICHELE D. SKRYD 
CESAR A. SANTOY 

THEODORE J. POLASHEK 
RAFAEL AVILA 

NORA LAURETO 
Aldermen 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of 
Berwyn, Illinois on February 19,2010 



ORDINANCE No.:, ____ - __ _ 

AN ORDINANCE REPLACING SECTION (A) OF CHAPTER 616.07 OF 
THE BERWYN CODE REGARDING THE IMPOUNDMENT OF DOGS 

AND CATS PROVISIONS OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, The City of Berwyn. Cook County, Illinois (the ACity@) as a home 

rule municipality pursuant to Section 6(a), Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the 

State of Illinois, and as slIch may exercise any power and perfonn any function pertaining 

to its government and affairs (the AHome Rule Powers@); and 

WHEREAS. the Corporate Authorities have detennined that certain 

enhancements need to be addressed as indicated in Section (a) of Ordinance 616.07; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn. Cook County, Illinois in the ex.ercise of Berwyn's home rule powers as follows: 

SECTION 1: The foregoing preambles are restated and incorporated herein by 

reference though fully set forth herein. 

SECTION 2: Part VI, Chapter 616.07 Section (a) of the Codified Ordinances is 

being replaced by the following: 

616.07 DOGS AND CATS 

(a) Impounding animals running at large and unliCensed animals. Any dog. cat or 
other animal found running at large, as set forth in Section 616.02, or a dog or cat for 
which the annual license fee has not been paid, as provided in Division (b) hereof, shall 
be impounded by the Police Department. 

(]) Notice of impoundment. The animal control officer or such other person as 
may from time to time be designated shall immediately upon receiving or impounding 

any animal make a complete registry, entering the breed. color, and gender of such 

2 



" ' 

animal and whether licensed or not. If licensed, the animal control officer shall include 
the main address of the owner or keeper and the number of the license tag if known and 
shall give notice forthwith to the owner or keeper informing him of the impounding of 
the animal. The animal control officer shall make every reasonable attempt to contact the 
owner as soon as possible, The animal control officer shall give notice of not less than 
seven (7) business days to the owner prior to the disposal of the animal. Such notice shall 
be mailed to the last known address of the owner, Testimony of the animal control 
officer, or his authorized agent, who mails such notice shall be evidence of the receipt of 
sl.lch notice by the owner of the animal. 

(2) Redemption of impounded licensed animals. When any licensed animal shall 
be impounded as provided for in this chapter, it may redeemed by its owner upon 

payment of all applicable fees, penalties and costs as set forth in this Code, induding a 
fee equal to the cost per day to board and care for such animal for each day the animal 
has been impounded. If such animal is not redeemed by the owner or keeper thereof 
within seven (7) business days after the notice of impoundment is sent to the owner, the 
animal control officer shall transfer the animal for its humane dispatch. 

(3) Redemption of impounded unlicensed animals. Every animal that is 
impounded as provided for in this chapter, for which no license has been obtained, shall 
be immediately transferred to a facility appropriate for the humane dispatch of such 
animal. Any person desiring to redeem an animal so impounded may do so by paying the 
applicable fees. penalties and costs as set forth in this Code, plus the license fee for the 
current license year and a reasonable fee to cover the cost of housing and feeding such 
animal. No such animal shall be released without being neutered or without a written 
agreement from the person desiring to redeem the animal that the animal will be 
neutered. and an agreement that. if applicable, the animal shall also be inoculated for 
rabies. Vaccination and other veterinary costs may be assessed to the person redeeming 
the animal. 

(4) Redemption of dangerous animals. In the case of an animal that has been 
detennined to be dangerous, as defined in this chapter, the animal may not be redeemed 
unless the owner supplies proof that such animal will not thereafter be kept or housed in 
the City, including the exact location where such animal will be kept so that the City may 
provide the applicable governmental authorities with notice of the animal's new location 
and the City'S Dangerous Dog Declaration. 

(5) Injured animals. Any injured animal which has been impounded may be 
given medical treatment or may be humanely dispatched by and under the direction of a 
licensed Illinois veterinarian or an animal officer certified by the National Animal 
Control Association in accordance with applicable law. The fee or charges for such 
veterinary services shall be deemed to be and shall be included as a cost and expense 
incurred in the impoundment of such animal. 

(6) Adoption. The City and its agents and contractors shall make a good faith 

3 



.' . 
effort to place any unredeemed animal with an appropriate individual or individuals for 
adoption or with a humane society or other agency which has, as one of its primary 
purposes, the placement of animals for adoption. Such agencies shall be licensed as 
required by state and/or loca11aw. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any unredeemed 
animal which has been examined by a licensed veterinarian and found by same to be 
seriously ill or injured or dangerolls may be immediately euthanized. 

SECflON 3: If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this ordinance 

shall be held invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect any of the other provisions of 

this ordinance. 

SECTION 4: All ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the 

extent of such conflict. 

SECTION 5: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage, approval and publication as provided by law. 

[INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

4 



" . 

ADOPTED this __ day of February, 2010. pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

YES NO ABSENT PRESENT 

Chapman 

Boyajian 

Paul 

Skryd 

Santoy 

Polashek 

Avila 

Laureto 

(Mayor Levere) 

TOTAL 

APPROVED by the Mayor on February _____ • 2010. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas J. Pavlik 

CITY CLERK 

5 

Robert J. Lovere 

MAYOR 



The City of Berwyn 

/1' 
A Century of Progress with Pride 

Date: March 4, 2010 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Ruth Volbre, Assistant to the City Administrator 

Re: Animal Ordinance 616.07 and 
Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement. 

Mayor and Council: 

Ruth E. Volbre 
Asst. to City 

Administrator 

At the previous council meeting, I recommended changes to Animal Ordinance 616.07. It was deferred 
because of questions regarding terminology. Therefore, I have made modifications to the attached 
ordinance for clarification purposes. If approved, our ordinance will mirror the animal friendly poliCies 
of Cicero and set a standard. The intergovernmental agreement, which I am asking the Council to 
approve, will be handed out at the March 9 th

, 2010 council meeting. 

If both the ordinance and intergovenunental agreement are approved, the City would be making a 
commitment to provide humane treatment to Berwyn's animals, and at the same time save 
thousands of dollars as illustrated in the attached spreadsheet. 

The Town of Cicero is currently looking at building a new animal shelter facility. When and if this 
facility is built, I will be asking for approval to purchase permanent cages for the use of Berwyn's 
impounded animals. Meanwhile. I am seeking approval to buy temporary cages that would be used in 
the current shelter. The number of cages and the cost will be submitted at council on March 911l

• We 
have budgeted sixty thousand dollars for Berwyn's animal impoundment services in the 2010 budget. 

Recommendation: Approval of the new procedures as outlined on the attached ordinance, authorize the 
City Administrator and City Attorney to execute an intergovernmental agreement with the Town of 
Cicero, and authorize the purchase of cages to be used in the animal shelter. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Respectfully, 

Ruth E. Volbre 
Assistant to the City Administrator 
6700 West 26 .... SIreel Berwyn, Illinois 6()4()2.(1701 Telephone: (70s) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 7SS·1S67 www.berwyll·il.gov 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER __ _ 

AN ORDINANCE REPLACING SECTION (A) OF CHAPTER 616.07 
OF THE BERWYN CODE REGARDING THE IMPOUNDlMENT OF 

DOGS AND CATS PROVISIONS OF THE CITY OF BERWYN , 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

ROBERT J. LOVERO, Mayor 
THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 
JEFFREY G. BOYAJIAN 

MARGARET PAUL 
MICHELE D. SKRYD 
CESAR A. SANTOY 

THEODORE J. POLASHEK 
RAFAEL AVaA 

NORA LAURETO 
Aldermen 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of 
Berwyn, Illinois on March 8, 2010 



ORDINANCE No.:_~_~ ___ _ 

AN ORDINANCE REPLACING SECTION (A) OF CHAPTER 616.07 OF 
THE BERWYN CODE REGARDING THE IMPOUNDMENT OF DOGS 

AND CATS PROVISIONS OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, The City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois (the ACity@) as a home 

rule municipality pursuant to Section 6(a), Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the 

State of Illinois, and as such may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining 

to its government and affairs (theAHome Rule Powers@); and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have detennined that certain 

enhancements need to be addressed as indicated in Section (a) of Ordinance 616.07; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois in the exercise of Berwyn's home rule powers as follows: 

SECTION 1: The foregoing preambles are restated and incorporated herein by 

reference though fully set forth herein. 

SECTION 2: Part VI, Chapter 616.07 Section (a) of the Codified Ordinances is 

being replaced by the following: 

616.07 DOGS AND CATS 

(a) Impounding animals ruruting at large and unlicensed animals. Any dog, cat or 
other animal found running at large, as set forth in Section 616.02, or a dog or cat for 
which the annual1icense fee has not been paid, as provided in Section (b) of Chapter 
616.07 hereof, shall be impounded by the Police Department. 

(1) Notice of impoundment. The animal control officer, or such other person as 
may from time to time be designated, shall immediately upon receiving or impounding 
any animal make a complete registry, entering the breed, color, and gender of such 

2 



· , 
animal and whether licensed or not. If licensed or chipped, the animal control officer 
shall include the main address of the owner and the nwnber of the license tag if known 
and shall give notice forthwith to the owner infonning himJher of the impounding of the 
animal. The animal control officer shall make every reasonable attempt to contact the 
owner as soon as possible. The animal control officer shall give notice of not less than 
seven (7) calendar days to the owner, ifknown, prior to the transfer of the animal to a no
kill shelter. Such notice shall be mailed to the last known address of the owner if 
available. Testimony of the animal control officer, or his authorized agent. who mails 
such notice shall be evidence of the receipt of such notice by the owner of the animal. 

(2) Redemption of impoW1ded licens.ed animals . When any licensed animal is 
impounded as provided for in this chapter, it may be redeemed by its owner upon 
payment of all applicable fees, penalties and costs as set forth in this Code, including a 
fee equal to the cost per day to board and care for such animal for each day the animal 
has been impounded. If such animal is not redeemed by the owner within seven (7) 
calendar days after the notice of impoundment is sent to the owner, the animal control 
officer shall transfer the animal to a no-kill shelter. 

(3) Redemption of impounded unlicensed animals. Every animal that is 
impounded as provided for in this chapter, for which no license or identification has been 
obtained, shall be held for four (4) calendar days before being transferred to a no-kill 
shelter. Any person desiring to redeem an animal so impounded may do so by paying the 
applicable fees, penalties and costs as set forth in Chapter 616.99, plus the license fee for 
the current license year and a reasonable fee to cover the cost of housing and feeding 
such animal. No such animal shall be released without being neutered/spayed and 
chipped or without a written agreement from the person desiring to redeem the animal. 
The agreement will state that the animal wUl be neutered/spayed and chipped, and, if 
applicable, the animal shall also be inoculated for rabies. Vaccination and other 
veterinary costs may be assessed to the person redeeming the animal. 

(4) Redemption of dangerous animals. In the case of an animal that has been 
determined to be dangerous, as defmed in Chapter 616.01, the animal may not be 
redeemed unless the owner supplies proof that such animal will not thereafter be kept or 
housed in the City, including the exact location where such animal will be kept so that the 
City may provide the applicable governmental authorities with notice of the animal's new 
location and the City's Dangerous Dog Declaration (referenced in Chapter 616.04). 

(5) Injured animals. Any injured animal which has been impounded may be 
given medical treatment or if deemed seriously ill or injured by an animal officer certified 
by the National Animal Control Association or a licensed Illinois veterinarian may be 
hwnanely dispatched by and under the direction of a licensed lllinois veterinarian or an 
animal officer certified by the National Animal Control Association in accordance with 
applicable law. The fee or charges for such veterinary services shall be deemed to be and 
shall be included as a cost and expense incurred in the impoundment of such animal. 

3 



· . 
(6) AdQptlon. The City and its agents and contractors shall make a good faith 

effort to place any unredeemed animal wlth an appropriate individual or individuals for 
adoption or with a humane society or other agency which has, as one of its primary 
purposes, the placement of animals for adoption. Such agencies shall be licensed as 
required by state and/or local law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any unredeemed or 
unlicensed animal which has been examined by a licensed veterinarian or an animal 
officer certified by the National Animal Control Association and found by same to be 
seriously ill or injured or dangerous may be immediately euthanized. 

SECTION 3: If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this ordinance 

shall be held invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect any of the other provisions of 

this ordinance. 

SECTION 4: All ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the 

extent of such conflict. 

SECTION 5: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage, approval and publication as provided by law. 

[INTENTIONALLY LEFI' BLANK] 

4 



ADOPTED this __ day of March, 2010, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

YES NO ABSENT PRESENT 
Chapman 

Boy_ajian 

Paul 

Skryd 

Santoy 

Polashek 

Avila 

Laureto 

(Mayor Lovero) 

TOTAL 

APPROVED by the Mayor on March __ ~ __ • 2010. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas 1. Pavlik 

CITY CLERK 

5 

Robert J. Lovero 

MAYOR 



Avg. Dally Transfer 
Yearly Avg. Dally Yearty Avg. Dally Cat Yearly Avg. Dog Yearfy Avg. Cat Yearly Avg. Dog Feetoa 

Total Fees J 
Animals Holding Cat H~cing Dog Holding Cat EuthanasLa Dog Euthanasia No-Kill 

Impounded Period Unredeemed IFee Unredeemed Fee Euthanized I Fee Euthanlzed Fee Shelter 
I I 

I 
New OrdJnance I i 

A-ArneriCan 350 4 I 83 1 S 1~5.00 15" 'S 22.50 3 $ SO.oo . 3 $ 75 •• $ 20.75 $ 2l;854:13 
Cicero 3SO .- 83 1$15.00 159 $ 15.00 - - :f $ ·~OO 3_ 

-
, $ 25..08 S 20.7~ , f $i~ , 

I Current - 1 

OrdInance , 
L I -

~Amertcan 350 5 $3 . S 15.00 159 $ 22.50 83 $ 50.00 1'59 $ 75.OD $ U.75 $ 4O~181.SO 
CIc8ro 350 I; 5 83 $15.00 ---.l59 ,S 1$.00 3 S 25.00 - 3 

- S ~.OO $ 20.75 _ $ 23,~1'.~ 
-



A Century of Progress with Pride 

February 25.2010 

To: Mayor and City COlmcil 

From: Brian Pabst, City Administrator 

Re: Recommendation of Cleaning Services 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Brian L. Pabst 
City Administrator 

At a previous City Council meeting, City Council authorized the development and execution of a 
contract with ABC Commercial Inc. for environmentally friendly cleaning services of all city buildings. 
ABC Commercial Inc. commenced cleaning the city buildings on February 1 SI, 2010 to the satisfaction 
of all department heads. 

It has recently come to my attention that the City of Berwyn is responsible for the cleaning and 
maintenance of the Berwyn Metra Station at Windsor and Oak Park. I requested a quote from ABC 
Commercial Inc. regarding the servicing of the Berwyn Metra Station. ABC provided a quote of $345 
per month. 

With the approval of City Council, I would like to execute the attached contract with ABC Commercial 
Inc. for environmentally friendly cleaning services for the Berwyn Metra Station at Windsor and Oak: 
Park. 

Recommendation: 

Authorize the City Administrator and City Attorney to execute a contract for cleaning services of the 
Berwyn Metra Station at Windsor and Oak Park in the amount of $345 per month for a duration of three 
years. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Respectfully, 

Brian Pabst 
City Administrator 

6700 We!it 26" Srreer Berwyn, lUi.noo 60402·0701 Telephonel (708) 788-2660 FlU:: (708) 788-2567 www.berwyn.i1.gov 



Agreement Between the City of Berwyn, Illinois and ABC Commercial 
Maintenance Services, Inc. for Cleaning Services for Berwyn Metra Station at 

Windsor and Oak Park 

This agreement is entered into by and between the City of Berwyn, an Illinois municipal 
corporation ("City"), 6700 W. 26th Street, Berwyn, IL 60402, and ABC Commercial 
Services, Inc ("Contractor"), 8056 North Milwaukee A venue, Niles, IL 60714. 

WITNESSETH 

Whereas, the City has determined that it is necessary to obtain the goods andJor services as 
more fully recited in Scope of Services; and 

Now, therefore, in consideration of their mutual promises, terms, covenants, agreements, 
and conditions recited in this Agreement, the City and the Contractor hereby agree as 
follows: 

1. Scope of Services. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, and 
equipment to provide the City of Berwyn with environmentally friendly cleaning services 
for City facilities as described in this Agreement. The Contractor represents and warrants 
that it shall perform the services in the manner consistent with the level of care and skill as 
defined in this Agreement. 

• Berwyn Metra Station at Windsor and Oak Park: 
Inside: 
- Sweep/Mop Floors - once a week 
- Wash Windows - once a month 
- Wipe down wood - furniture cleaner - once a week 
- Wipe down water fountains - once a week 
- Dust Fans - once a month 
- Pick up litter - once a week 
- Wipe down counters - once a week 
- Shake carpets out - once a week 
- Report any/all lighting or safety issues - continuous 

Outside: 
- Wipe down benches - once a week 
- Pick-up trash and remove from site - once a week 
- Sweep brick pavers on platform and along Windsor Ave - once a week 
- Wipe down and sanitize telephone - once a week 
- Empty cigarette urns (x2) - once a week 
- Wash windows - once a month 
- Report graffiti 
- Clean wind shelters 
- Sweep ramps 

Page 1 



A. Professional workmanship shall meet or exceed existing industry 
standards. 

B. Unless otherwise specified, the finn shall unconditionally guarantee the 
workmanship of the cleaning of the buildings. If the workmanship is 
found to be faulty in any way, the firm, upon notification and at his/her 
expense, shall rectify and redo what was not done, or done Incorrectly 
(within two (2) business days) to the complete satisfaction of the City of 
Berwyn. 

C. Failure of the Contractor to provide services within the time specified, 
unless extended in writing by the City of Berwyn, or failure to redo 
services that were done incorrectly or not done at all when so directed by 
the City of Berwyn shall constitute service failure. When such failure 
occurs, the City of Berwyn reserves the right to cancel or monetarily 
adjust the contract; whichever is in the best interest of the City of 
Berwyn. In either event, the City of Berwyn may purchase in the open 
market services of comparable worth to replace the services not done 
correctly or not done at all. On all such purchases, the Contractor shall 
reimburse the City of Berwyn, within reasonable time specified by the 
City of Berwyn for any expense incurred; if not cancelled, such purcbases 
shall be deducted from the contract quantities. The City of Berwyn 
reserves the right to not accept services which do not meet the 
specifications, or are substandard in quality, subject to an adjustment in 
price to be determined by the City of Berwyn. 

2. Compensation / Payment. The City shall compensate the Contractor three 
hundred and forty five dollars ($345.00) monthly for its cleaning services. 

• Payment Terms. Payment may be made only after inspection and acceptance by 
the City. Payment of balances shall be made only after approval and final 
acceptance by the City. 

• Invoicing. Following acceptance of each payment term, payment shall be made 
within forty.five (45) calendar days from receipt of itemized invoice. Before the 
City will pay any invoice, the invoice must include a detailed description of all 
charges, the proposal number, department name, dollar amount, quantity of 
hours worked, and any other pertinent information. Submit invoice in duplicate 
to: 

City of Berwyn 
Finance Department 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

• Withholdina Payment. Consideration for withholding payment shall include faulty 
materials, or workmanship, failure to meet delivery deadlines, and liens that have 
been fLIed, or evidence indicating a filing of claims. In all cases, regulations and 
limitation by the Federal Government. 

Page 2 



• Taxes. The City of Berwyn is exempt from all Federal, State ofIIlinois and other 
State Taxes on the purchase of commodities and services used by the City of Berwyn 
within the State of lllinois. The Finance Department shall provide a tax exemption 
certification to out-of-state taxes imposed on purchases of commodities and/or 
services which are used within another state and are applicable and subject to 
payment. 

• Purchase. Contractors and subcontractors shall purchase their own 
environmentally friendly cleaning products for the cleaning services being 
performed according to the Scope of the agreement. 

3. Term of Agreement. The Agreement shall commence on April!, 2010 and shall 
terminate on January 31, 2013. The City, at its option, may extend this Agreement if the 
Contractor holds firm to the original proposal prices, conditions and specifications. 

4. Additional ServiclJs. The Contractor shall provide only those goods and perform 
only those services specified in this Agreement. In the event the Contractor, Engineer or 
the City determines that additional goods and/or services are required to complete the 
project, such additional goods shall not be provided and/or such additional services shall 
not be performed unless directed in writing by the City. Terms, frequency, and prices for 
additional services shall be as mutually agreed upon in writing by the City and the 
Contractor. 

S. Hold Harmless and Indemnification. The Contractor shall defend, hold harmless, and 
indemnify the City, its officers, agents, employees, and elected officials, in whole or in part from any loss, 
damage, demand, liability, cause of action, fine, judgment, or settlement, together with all costs and 
expenses related thereto ( including reasonable expert witness and attorney fees ), that may be incurred 
as a result of bodily injury, sickness, death, or property damage or as a result of any other claim or suit of 
any nature whatsoever arising from or in any manner connected with directly or indirectly, the negligent 
act, errors, omissions, or intentional acts or omissions, or omissions of any agent, subcontractor hired to 
perform any services on behalf of the Contractor. 

6. Insurance. The Contractor and each of its agents, subcontractors, and consultants hired to 
perform any services provided for in this agreement and attached sections, shall purchase and maintain 
during the term of this Agreement as specified below. Current Certificate ofInsurance in the amounts 
specified shall be on me with the City of Berwyn before work can commence. The City of Berwyn is to be 
listed on the current Certificate of Insurance. 

Page 3 



a. Certificate of Insurance; Cancellation or Modification 

(1) , Before commencing work, the Contractor shall submit to the City of Berwyn for 
approval a Certificate of Insurance meeting the requirements specified herein, to 
be in effect for the full contract period. 

(2) The Contractor shall notify the City of Berwyn in writing at least thirty (30) 
calendar days prior to any change or cancellation of said policy or policies. 

(3) Cancellation or modification of said policy or policies shall be considered just 
cause for the City of Berwyn to immediately cancel the contract and/or halt work 
on the contract, and to withhold payment for any work performance on the 
contract. 

b. Minimum Coverage 

(1) Any policy or policies of insurance purchased by the Contractor to satisfy their 
responsibilities under the proposal shall include contractual liability coverage, and 
shall be in the following type and minimum amounts: 

Each 
Type of Coverage Occurrence Aggregate 

a. Comprehensive General Liability 
(1) Bodily Injury & Property Damage $1,000,000 $2,000,000 

b. Automobile Liability Combined 
Single Limit 

(1) Bodily Injury & Property Damage $500,000 

c. Worker's Compensation Insurance as required by Illinois state law. 

The City of Berwyn requires that the Contractor's Insurance carrier be A rated or better by A.M. Best. 

7. Compliance with Laws. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state and 
local laws, rules, and regulations, and aU City ordinances, rules and regulations now in force or hereafter 
enacted, in the provisions of the goods and/or performance of the services required under this 
Agreement. 

8. Assurances. The contractor certifies that they have not been suspended or debarred from 
doing business with the federal government. 

9. Termination of Contract. Contract shall remain in force for the full specified period and 
until all services have been satisfactorily delivered and accepted and thereafter until all requirements and 
conditions shall be met, unless: 

a. Extended upon written authorization of the city and accepted by contractor, for a 
period negotiated and agreed upon by both parties, when in the best interest of the 
City of Berwyn. 

Page 4 



b. Terminated due to the default, as described below, or for no reason at all, as long as 
.' the City of Berwyn gives a written 90 day notice. 

c. Default. The Contract may be cancelled or annulled by the City of Berwyn in 
whole or in part by written notice of default to the Contractor upon non
performance, violation of contract terms, delivery fallure, bankruptcy or insolvency, 
or the making of an assignment for the benefit of creditors. The City reserves the 
right to grant Contractor a specified cure period of during which to cure or remedy 
the default, which cure period shall be included in the written notice to default. If 
default is not cured within the specifled time, City of Berwyn reserves the right, but 
is not obligated to, extend the cure period or City Berwyn may deem the contract 
terminated without further notice. Lack of knowledge by the contractor will in no 
way be cause for relief from responsibility. 

10. Subletting of Contract. Contractor shall not assign, transfer, convey, sublet or otherwise 
dispose of the contract or their right, title or interest therein, or their power to execute such contract to 
any other person, rtrm or corporation without the prior written consent of the City of Berwyn, but in no 
case shall such consent relieve the Contractor from their obligations, or change the terms of the contract. 

11. Contract Alterations. No alterations or variations in the terms of a contract shall be valid or 
binding upon the City of Berwyn unless authorized in writing by both parties. 

12. Discrimination Prohibited. The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of 
The Illinois Human rights Act, as amended, 775 ILCS 5/1-101 et seq. (1992 State Bar Edition), and with 
all rules and regulations established by the Department of Human Rights. 

13. Payment Provisions. Payment will be made within forty five (45) calendar days from receipt 
of itemized invoice, and after approval by the City. 

14. Notification. All notification under this agreement shall be made as follows: 

If to the Contractor: 
ABC Commercial, Inc 
Attn: Derek Jankowski 
8056 N. Milwaukee Ave. 
Niles, IL 60714 

If to the City: 
City of Berwyn 
Attn: City Clerk 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

15. Severability. If any provision of this Contract Is held to be illegal, invalid, or 
unenforceable, such provision shall be fully severable, and this Contract shall be construed 
and enforced as if such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision were never a part hereof; 
the remaining provisions hereof shall remain In full force and effect and shall not be affected 
by the illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision or by its severance; and in lieu of such 
illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision as may be possible and legal, valid and 
unenforceable. 

PageS 



· .' 

In Witness Whereof, the parties have entered into thus agreement this 12th day 
of March, 2010. 

City of Berwyn 

By __ --------__________________ ___ 

Attest: 

ABC Commercial Maintenance Services, Inc. 

By ____________________________ ___ 

Page 6 



Brian Pabst 
The City of Berwyn 

City Administrator 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 260) Street Selwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephooe: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788-2567 

Date: March 9, 2010 

To: Mayor Robert Lovero & City Council Members 

From: Brian Pabst, City Administrator 
Re: Inventory of buildings along 

the Cermak Road Corridor 

On October 13, 2009, the City Council created the Historic Steering Committee and authorized the 

Committee to solicit proposals from quaHfied professionals to perform an inventory of the buildings 

nlong the Cermak Road Corridor in the City of Berwyn for the ultimate purpose of aiding the Committee 

in identifying and quantifying their relative historic significance and value. After meeting to detennine 

the precise nature of the scope of work and qualifications that the Committee concluded were appropriate, 

a Request for Proposals (RFP) was issued by the Committee. with all proposals due by 5 p.m. on January 

11,2010. (A copy of the RFP is attached for the Council's reference) . 

Six proposals were received by the Committee in response to the RFP. The firms responding were as 

follows: (1) Bauer Latoza Studio. (2) Granacki Historic Consultants. (3) Spaan Tech. Inc .• (4) The Lakota 

Group. Inc .. (5) Ridgeland Associates. and (6) the firm of Jean Guarino and Anna Sullivan. 

After agreeing on a protocol consisting of price, responsiveness to the scope of work. experience. 

references and time line, the Committee met to evaluate the six firms that responded to the RFP. On 

January 12. 20 I 0, the Committee met and voted unanimously to recommend that the City Council retain 

The Lakota Group to complete the survey. The Committee collectively determined that The Lakota Group 

was the best finn for the task. Ending up in the middle of the cost range. the Committee focused on the 

detail with which Lakota responded to the carefully crafted scope of work proposed in the RFP, the great 

experience of the firm. and the detailed time-line provided. Also important to the Committee was the fact 

that Lakota was already familiar with the City of Berwyn and its Codes, and that various Committee 

members had good experiences with Lakota's performance in the past. The Lakota proposal is to 

complete the survey as outlined by the RFP for a tOUlI cost, inclusive of fees and expenses. of $20,864 . 

As to funding, the Committee was aware of the City's current financial situation and worked to secure 

sources of funding outside of the City's budget. To that end. the Council should be aware that Berwyn 

Main Street has committed to fund the survey up to a maximum of $10.000; the Berwyn Development 

Corporation has committed up $10,000 toward the survey; and the Illinois Historic Preservation 
Association (IHPA) has awarded the Historic Preservation Commission a grant of $10.000, which is 



· available for the survey. The Steering Committee, therefore, is pleased to inform the City Council that the 
project can be completed with no additional City dollars being spent. 

Based on the above, it is the Berwyn Historic Steering Committee's recommendation that the City 

Council accept the proposal of the Lakota Group, Inc., to complete the requested inventory of historic 

buildings on Cermak Road, at a cost not to exceed $20,864. Upon the Council's acceptance of the final 
project, the Steering Committee further recommends that the IHPA $10,000 grant be used, with the 
balance of $10,864 to be shared equally by Berwyn Main Street and the Berwyn Development 
Corporation. 

Recommendation: Approve the Lakota Group proposal in the amount of $20,864 with a not to exceed 

total amount of $25,000 for any unforeseen expenses. This amount falls we1! under the available $30,000 
as indicated above. 

Respectfu II y, 

~Pr-
Brian Pabst 
City Administrator 



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
For 

Cermak Road Historic Building Inventory 
Berwyn, Illinois 

RFP responses are due: January 11, 2010 at 5:00 PM 

Addressed to: The City of Berwyn, 
6700 West 26th Street, 

Berwyn, n 60402 
Attention: City Clerk 

THE RESPONSmILITY FOR SUBMITTING A RESPONSE TO TIDS RFP TO 
THE CITY OF BERWYN ON OR BEFORE THE STATED TIME AND DATE 
WILL BE SOLELY AND STRICTLY THE RESPONSmILITY OF THE 
RESPONDENT. 



I. GENERAL INFORMATION 

A. Introduction and Overview 

The City of Berwyn Preservation Steering Committee is inviting qualified planning 
consultants to submit their qualifications for the preparation of an inventory of historic 
buildings and properties located within the City of Berwyn's Cermak Road commercial 
corridor. The purpose of the project is to study the development history of the corridor 
and document historic resources within the corridor. 

The City of Berwyn, Illinois, is a mature, built-up community of approximately 54,000 
people, located approximately 9 miles west of downtown Chicago. The City is generally 
bordered by Oak: Park on the north, Cicero on the east, Stickney on the south and Lyons, 
Riverside, North Riverside, and Forest Park on the west. Long known as the "City of 
Homes," Berwyn offers a high concentration of historically significant housing 
structures, in a wide range of housing types, located in attractive, well-maintained 
neighborhood areas. The historical, cultural, and ethnic diversity that make up Berwyn 
are characteristics which should be identified and preserved. 

The City's 2008 Corrunercial Market Assessment findings confirmed that Cermak Road 
"is primarily a neighborhood-serving corridor with a mix of national, regional, and 
independent businesses." The Cermak corridor is the locale for a Tax Increment 
Financing (TIP) District. The corridor is bordered on the north and south by residential 
neighborhoods, primarily consisting of single-family and two-family residential units. 
The corridor is also designated as a "Strategic Regional Arterial (SRA)" route by the 
lllinois Department of Transportation (IDOT). 

For more infonnation on Berwyn's history and evolution as a first-tier Chicago suburb. 
go to http://www.berwyn.netlberwyn/history.asp 

B. Inquiry Period 

The RFP process will open on Monday, December 7.2009 and will close on 
Monday, January 11,2010 at 5 PM. During this period, prospective consultants 
may request information or answers to questions regarding the RFP. Brian 
Pabst, City Administrator for the City of Berwyn Is the sole point of contact for 
any questions related to this solicitation. Inquiries directed to anyone other 
than the Individual Identified below may be grounds for Immediate 
rsjectlon .. 

2 



Questions and/or comments should be directed in writing to: 

Brian Pabst 
The City of Berwyn 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, I L 60402 
Telephone: 708-749-6432 

C. Submission Deadline 

Responses must be submitted no later than Monday, January 11, 2010 at 5 PM. 
Any submissions received after the submittal deadline will be returned unopened. 

The submittal must clearly indicate the 101l0wing information: 

Cermak Corridor Historic Building Inventory 

The submittal must contain all the information and be organized as requested in 
this RFP. Failure to follow these instructions may result in rejection of the 
qualifications. 

Applicants assume all costs associated with the submission of the qualifications, 
updating, or supplementation of information, due diligence efforts, responding to 
any requests for information, Interviews, or other items prior to the execution of a 
contract or agreement. The City of Berwyn is under no obligation to proceed with 
a project. Submission of RFP materials in no way confers upon the applicant any 
position, privilege, or preference as it relates to a given project 

Each applicant must state that their submittal is valid for a period of six (6) 
months from the date set for receipt of qualifications. 

Each applicant must submit one (1) original and (6) copies of the RFP. The 
original must be unbound and have no holes punched in the page, and be 
suitable for processing through a copying machine. The qualifications should be 
submitted on 8 1/2n x 11" paper, single sided. Maps and graphics may be 
submitted on paper up to 11"x17" and folded Into the RFP. 

The City of Berwyn reserves the right to extend the dates for RFP submiSSion as 
well as the length of the inquiry period . 

The City of Berwyn is not responsible for delays by the U.S . Postal Service, the internal 
mail delivery system, or any other means of delivery employed by the bidder. Similarly, 

3 



the City of Berwyn is not responsible for, and will not open, any responses which are 
received later than the specified day and time. 

D. Submittal Requirements 

Responses to this RFP should address the following criteria and provide the materials as 
outlined per each section below: 

Section 1 - Firm Description 
1. Nature of Business; 
2. Years of Operation; 
3. Organization Type (corporation, partnership, joint venture, etc.). 

Section 2 - History of Firm 
Demonstrate the firm's ability to develop inventories of historic buildings and properties 
for a variety of municipal and other governmental clients, and the necessary 
technical/financial resources to undertake the project. Also include one sample survey 
report from a recently completed inventory. 

Section 3 - Key Individual Resumes 
Provide resumes and critical information for all principals and key individuals who would 
participate on the development of the inventory. Resumes should summarize the 
professional experience of each person, including total time with firm, present and past 
responsibilities, and a description of their experience prior to joining this firm. 

Section 4 • Organizational Structure 
Provide an overview of the organizational structure of the firm, including the delineation 
of lines of responsibility. Indicate the name, address, phone/fax numbers, and e-mail 
information of the representative authorized to act on behalf of the fum, and the name, 
address, phone/fax numbers, and e-mail information of the project manager assigned to 
the development of the plan. 

Section 5 - Professional References 
Provide at least three (3) references other than financial and project-specific from 
individuals or firms with whom the Applicant has worked. Include the name, address, 
telephone and fax numbers, and e-mail address of the contact person. References must be 
from a municipality for which the firm has previously worked. 

Section 6 - Scope of Services 
Provide a scope of services for the development of the inventory, assistance and 
information required from City of Berwyn departments and personnel, and resources 
required for successful completion of project. The scope of services should include, but 
might not be limited to, the following: 

1. A physical survey of the Cermak corridor, from Harlem Ave. to Lombard 
Ave. in the City of Berwyn 

4 



2. Identification, photography, and evaluation of buildings in light of the 
corridor's overall architectural style and historical significance. 

3. Provision of information on Berwyn's architectural and/or architectural styles. 
4. Performance of complete property-specific research on all features in 

accordance with each property's historically, and / or architecturally 
significant features in accordance with survey work, as well as the original 
quality and continued integrity of those features (understanding that not all 
features are historically and / or architecturally significant). 

5. Complete a final report consisting of (1) objectives, (2) area surveyed. 
(3) research design, (4) methodology, (5) results of scope of work and bases 
for those results (6) sources, (7) maps, (8) field survey records, (9) an analysis 
of all criteria necessary in order to determine whether a property is potentially 
eligible to be listed on the National Register of Historic Places. and if 
ascertainable the following information: (10) date of original construction or if 
unavailable. approximate age, (11) original owner, (12) architect. (13) builder. 

6. All information shall be provided in both a traditional "paper" format in 
addition to a digital format that can easily be posted on our website. 

7, Provide a description of the technique and methodology that the consultant 
proposes to employ. 

Section 7 - Fees for Services 
Provide a list of estimated fees for services to be rendered by the firm. including 
estimated fully-loaded hourI y rates. 

Section 8 - Timeline 
Provide an explanation of the proposed inventory, with a timeline outlining major 
milestones and successful completion of the project. 

Section 9 - Liability Insurance 
Provide the amount and type of general and professional liability insurance to include 
Workers' Compensation carried by the firm. 

E. Consultant Review/Selection Process 

The selection process will involve an evaluation and ranking of each RFP by the City of 
Berwyn Preservation Steering Committee including, but not limited to, the following 
selection criteria: 

1. The proposed concept and project scheduleJtimeline/phasing as described 
herein under "Scope of Services," Section 6; 

2. The professional and technical competence and related experience of the firm, 
including the Project Manager and other key project participants in organizing 
and completing similar projects; 

3. The qualifications of the firm; 

5 



· . 
4. Knowledge of the City and surrounding area/region and subject matter to be 

addressed under the Agreement. 

5. Responsiveness of the response to the RFP; 

6. Ability to meet schedule in a timely fashion, including staffing, familiarity 
with subject matter, and availability to accommodate all required meetings. 

The City of Berwyn Preservation Steering Committee reserves the right to interpret said 
criteria as it sees fit based upon benefits to the public and the requirements stated in this 
solicitation. 

From the rankings, one or more of the best-qualified firms may be short-listed. Short
listed candidates may be interviewed at The City of Berwyn Preservation Steering 
Committee's sole discretion, and additional information may also be requested. The City 
of Berwyn Preservation Steering Committee will fonnulate a recommendation or 
recommendations for the Berwyn City Council from among the short-listed candidates. 
The short-listed candidates may be requested to make presentations to an evaluation 
panel, as well as the City Council at one of their respective, regularly scheduled 
meetings. 

The presentations should include, but are not limited to: 

L Make-up of the development entity/team; 
2. Site plans or aerial photoes) showing the project area; 
3. Estimated schedule!timeline for completion of the proposed inventory. 
4. Include a line-item fee per task. 

Firm selection and approval is at the complete and sole discretion of the Berwyn City 
Council. The City of Berwyn reserves the right to reject any or all responses and make 
no recommendations if, at its sole discretion, none of the RFP responses meet the City'S 
needs for successful completion of the inventory. 

Upon the direction of the City Council, The City of Berwyn Preservation Steering 
Committee may begin formal negotiations with the firm selected by the City Council, 
possibly resulting in a professional agreement with the firm. 

F. Presentations of Final Inventory Report 

The consultant may make one (1) presentation to the Berwyn City Council (any 
presentations associated with the consultant selection process are not included). 

G. Timeframe 

6 



, . 

Upon execution of the agreement with the selected firm, The City of Berwyn 
Preservation Steering Committee will expect the consultant to be prepared to quickly 
commence work. The selected firm will submit a detailed timeline concerning expected 
completion dates for the project as a whole, along with benchmarks. 

H. Deliverables 

As described within the Scope of Services, the consultant shall submit the following final 
products, per the timeframe as detailed in the agreement with the selected firm and the 
City of Berwyn: 

One (1) copies of the draft report and twelve (12) copies of the final report, and one (1) 
electronic copy of the final report to include the following; 

1. objectives 
2. area surveyed 
3. research design 
4. methodology 
5. quantitative summary of surveylinventory results and bases for those results 
6. sources 
7. maps 
8. field survey records 

I. Attachments 

Exhibit 1: 
Exhibit 2: 

Map of Cermak Commercial Corridor 
City of Berwyn Zoning Map 

7 



The City of Benvyn 

/6 
A Century of Progress with Pride 

March 4, 2010 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Brian Pabst, City Administrator 

Re: Recommendation of Approval of the Drug and 
Alcohol Testing Program 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Brian L. Pabst 
City Administrator 

Pursuant to Pace guidelines, the City is required to adopt the Berwyn's Senior Service Drug and Alcohol 

Policy and Testing Program. This required policy is only applicable to the Pace van drivers. Staff will 

hand out the Drug and Alcohol Policy at the March 9th council meeting, and a formal resolution will be 

placed on the March 23rd agenda. 

Recommendation: Approval of Berwyn's Senior Service Drug and Alcohol Policy and Testing 

Program. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Respectfully, 

S3~~~--
Brian Pabst 
City Administrator 

6700 West 2660. Street Be~n, Illinoie 604OZ-0701 TelepbO~1 (708) 788-2660 Faxl (708) 788-2567 www.berwyn.il.gov 



e City of Berwyn 
Brian Pabst 

City Administrator 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 west 26'" Street .Berwyn. lllInoia 60402-0'701 Telephone: (708) 788-2860 Fax: (708) 788-2587 

Date: March 9,2010 
To: Mayor Robert Lovero & City Council Members 
From: Brian Pabst, City Administrator 

Re: Request Approval of Priority 

At the December 22, 2009 council meeting, the Berwyn City Council approved the signing of a 
contract with Camp Dresser and McGee (CDM) for engineering services (energy efficiency analysis 
and subsequent Strategy Plan) related to an energy grant in the amount of $444.300. 

To date, the City has received $250,000. These initial monies are to pay for COM's services in the 
amount of $135,635, leaving $114,365 in cash received for identified projects as listed below. Once 
the Strategy Plan has been received and approved by the Department of Energy, we will receive the 
remainder of the monies ($444.300 - $250,000 = $194,3(0). 

Once the Strategy Plan is complete and the Department of Energy has approved the plan and 
associated cost backup the City will have to provide. the U.S. Department of the Treasury can 
release the remainder of the monies to the Berwyn account. As part of our energy related strategy 
development, COM has provided the City with a list of current additional grant funding sources that 
may enhance this account balance. Once a strategy plan is in place. the City may then qualify for 
additional energy related grant monies. 

Staff's methodology in prioritizing the items illustrated in CDM's spreadsheets, was to identify 
immediate needs in addition to cost savings with the understanding that with the exception of the 
191h Street pump house and the police department, the City receives free electricity. The Mayor and 
City attorney are researching the reason we have been paying for electricity at the police 
department. Utilizing the above criteria, we are recommending the below projects in order of 
priority. Please note the total cost in aggregate of the items below exceeds the amount of grant 
funds we have been allocated by the federal government. A total of $308,665 is available for 
energy conservation measures, and therefore; not all of the items listed below can be completed 
with the funds from the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant. (Note: For detailed 
information. see the attached energy analysis provided by CDM). 

lA: Chiller for the library: estimated cost of $135,000. While this amount is only an estimate, the 
existing air-conditioning system needs to be repaired or replaced as soon as possible. The 
library director is currently updating bids that were received in March 2009. With summer 



fast approaching, staff is of the opinion that we need to address this issue fIrst. If the 
engineer's estimate to replace the existing system is correct, we will need to identify an 
additional approximate $20,000 since our cash received is only $114,365. This replacement is 
expected to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 

lB: Two condensing boilers for City Hall and the adjoining fire station: estimated cost of $45,000. 
This project ranked high in importance due to the current condition of the boilers. 

2. New roof for the Recreation Center: estimated cost of $200,000. The current roof is 
approximately 44 years old. Built-up roofs have an approximate 30 year life expectancy; 
therefore, due to the importance of replacing this roof prior to developing leaks. this project is 
considered very important. 

3. Replace unit heaters with gas-fIred radiant heating in the Public Works building: estimated 
cost of $60,000. This will save the City an estimated $9,300 per year in natural gas. 

4. Purchase hybrid vehicles for the Police Department. The Department of Energy will pay the 
City the incremental cost difference (the difference between the price of a new non-hybrid 
vehicle and a hybrid vehicle) for each vehicle. In addition, the City's estimated gas savings 
for each vehicle purchased per year is approximately $7,000 based from mileage estimates 
listed by the manufacturers. 

The above list does not include all potential projects as identified in the attachments. Our 
immediate goal is to identify an initial $444,300 (or more) in projects in order to submit them as a 
part of the Strategy Plan to the Department of Energy. The above priority list may change as 
additional information is received. If this occurs, staff will place the revised list on the council 
agenda for approval. The Department of Energy allows the applicant the flexibility to change 
priorities as they deem appropriate. 

Recommendation: Approval by the Council to accept the priority list as indicated above and 
approval to bid out a new air conditioning system for the library. The library's bids are 
approximately one year old. Due to the economy. we anticipate that prices may have dropped. For 
these two reasons, staff is recommending that we re-bid the project (update existing bids in addition 
to advertising the project on our website). Since the summer months are fast approaching, the 
library has stressed the need to get the system operational as soon as possible. To that end, staff is 
also requesting to waive the sealed bid process. 

Respectfull y, 

~l?Jr 
City Administrator 



I Energy I 

Conservation 
Measures I 

I 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

"8 

Potential Energy Conservation Measures 

19th Street Pump Station 

-, I 

Greenhouse I 

Gas Emissions 
Reduced 

$/Vear (metric tons 

Description Saved COze) 

I' 

4 skylights· two are broken 4x4 $ . 

(6) 4x6 window to be replaced with 

double pane $ 3S 0_25 

Add occupancy sensors to toilet, 

control room, entry, and meter shop 
areas $ 231 1.66 

Replace roof with TPO $ 65 0.46 

Replace T12 lights with T-8's and 

Incandescents with Fluorescents_ 

Replace exIt signs wIth LED. $ 2,859 20.53 

Replace exhaust fan in pump Room 

with new one interlocked to T-stat 

and louvers above the east doors $ 1,401 10.06 

Replace air conditioner in Control 

Room with wall mounted split AC 

and seal infiltration $ 3 0.02 
Install photosensor for daylight 

harvesting in the Pump Room $ 263 1.89 

Total If all measures are accepted $ 4,857 34.87 

·'ndlcates Engmeenng IS required and approximate cost mcluded 

Elilible for 
Addltiona. 

Grants 
I 

(.DCEO&IL 
Capital Cost I Clean Energy) ' 

No 

$ 10,000 Yes 

$ BOO Yes 

$ 24,510 

$ 6,082 Yes 

$ 5,000 Yes 

$ 3,500 Yes 

$ 11,221 Yes 

$ 61,113 



Energy 

Conservation 

Measures 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

*8 

Potential Energy Conservation Measures 
Central Fire 

Greenhouse 
Gas Emissions 

Reduced 
$/Vear (metric tons of 

Description Saved COze) Capital Cost 
-- _ .- - - . - - - - -- - - - .- -

CENTRAL FIRE 

Change T·12's to T-8's and 
install LED lights for exit signs $ 974 12.95 $ 

Hose Tower: Install 
occupancy sensor and new 

exhaust fan interlocked with 
damper and heating coli $ 161 1.94 $ 

New roofing over kitchen and 
old apparatus bay (R17) $ 281 1.86 $ 
Install originally designed RTU 

for kitchen/dayroom 1 
$ (358) -2.28 $ 

Occupancy sensors in 
rest rooms, storage rooms, 

offices, boiler room, and 
closets $ 23 0.29 $ 

Install Photo sensor in 
Apparatus Bay $ 165 2.17 $ 
COMBINED City Hall and 

Centr<l\ Fire ECMs 

Replace current boiler with 
two condensing boilers, one 
for each facility. $ 1,321 17.32 $ 

Decentralize water heat $ 118 0.78 $ 
Total If all measures are 

accepted 2,685 35.03 $ 

·Indicates Engineering reqUIred and approxImate cost mcluded 

lThere is no energy savings for this measure 

13,500 

3,500 

39,300 

30,000 

2,800 

16,289 

45,000 

25,000 

115,389 

Eligible for 
Additional 

Grants 
('DCEO&IL 

Clean 
,Ener'IY) 

Yes 

yes 

No 

No 

yes 

Yes 

yes 

yes 



Energy 

Conservation 

Measures 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

*6 

Potential Energy Conservation Measures 

City Hall 

Description 

$/year 

Sayed I 

Greenhouse 

Gas Emissions 

Reduced 

(metric tons Of 

COle) capital Cost 
-

CITV HALL 

Replace vestibule door with 

double pane glass and doors $ 130 1.31 $ 16,800 
Occupancy sensors In 

restrooms, storage rooms, 

offices, break room, and 

closets $ 276 3.55 $ 6,800 

Interlock toilet room exha ust 

with lights $ 105 1.26 $ 600 

Change allincandescents to 

Compact Fluorescents and 

install LED lights for Exit signs $ 117 1.51 $ 8,687 

Add controls to turn on and 

off HVAC during unoccupied 

hours. Provide timeclock 

control for AHU serving City 

Hall's 1st and 2nd floor and 

timeciock control for AHU 

serving City Hall's Basement. $ 3,685 34.83 $ 10,000 
Install Photo sensor in offices 

and break rooms $ 253 3.30 $ 5,432 

Total If all measures are 

accepted 4,566 45.76 $ 48,319 

*Indicates Engineering required and approximate cost included 

Eligible for 

Additional 

Grants 

(DCEO&IL 

Clean 

Enel'lY) 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 



Ener,gy 
Conservation 

Measures 

1 

2 

3 

4 

·5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

Potential Energy Conservation Measures 

Cultural Center 

I 
I 

II 

Greenhouse 
Gas Emissions 

'Reduced 
$/V,ear (metric tons 

DescrlptJon Saved C02e) Capital Cost 
I [[ 

Change single pane storefront 

vestibule to double pane 15 $ 101 0.53 $ 25,000 

feet. Doors and glass. (2) 3 x 8 

doors 

Insulate ducts in EMS room 
$ 285 1.92 $ 1,000 

Reduce ventilation In 
$ $ - 1,000 

basement 

Occupancy sensors in 

bathrooms, offices, kitchen, 
$ 20 0.14 $ 4,400 

storage rooms, foyer, and 

vestibule 

Use daylighting controls in 

cultural center lobby and $ 384 2.80 $ 52,138 

offices 

Replace all T-12's with T-8's 
$ 1,676 12.47 $ 24,006 

Train employees on 
$ 567 3.81 $ 

maintenance schedule l -

Clea n Air Filters $ -
Rebalance ducting system $ - $ 1,000 
LED lighting for Exit signs $ 169 1.21 $ 3,848 

Total If all measures are 
accepted $ 3,203 22.88 $ 112,392 

. . 
·'ndlcates Engineering Will be required and approximate cost IS Included 

INa cost to implement and savings is significant 

EUlible for 
Additional, 

Grants 
(DCEO&IL 

Clean Energy) 

Yes 

No 

No 

Yes 

yes 

Yes 

No 

No 

No 
yes 



Energy 
Conservation , 

Measures 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

·7 

8 

Potential Energy Conservation Measures 

Library 

I 

! 
Greenhouse 

Gas Emissions 

I Reduced 
$/year (metric tons 

I, 

Description Saved C02e) capital Cost 

VAV system is half installed -
$ 17,605 123.89 $ 30,000 

add controls 

Apply variable speed control 
$ 10,785 77.44 $ -

to e)(isting VFOs 

Replace Chiller $ 1,724 12.38 $ 135,000 

Replace heating system with 
$ 2,504 16.92 $ 58,000 

Condensing Boiler 

Reduction in lPD $ 2,047 14.82 $ 17,065 

Occupancy Sensors in 
$ 608 4.40 $ 5,000 

restrooms and offices 

Daylight Control in offices 
$ 4,133 29.86 $ 141,618 

and stack area 
ECMs 1,2,3&4 and demand 

only operation of Chiller and $ 847 5.91 $ 2,000 
Boiler 

Total if all measures are 
accepted $ 40,254 285.62 $ 388,683 

.. 
·'ndlcates Engineering IS required and appro)(lmate cost IS Included 

, I 

Eligible for 
Additional 

Grants 
(DCEOall 

Clean 

EnellY) 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 



I I 

£nerBY 
Conservation 
Me~sure5 I 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

$12 

13 

Potential Energy Conservation Measures 
Main Ret Center 

I I 

Gree"houseGa 
5 Eml$sions 

Reduced 
$/Vear (metric tons 

Description I Saved CO,e) capital Cost 

Roof replacement· TPO 
$ 1,348 10.82 $ 200,000 

white 

All glass in building Is single 
pane and should be replaced S 417 3.21 S 81,500 
with double pane 

Vestibule has 4 sets of glass 
doors total 8 doors 3x8. 30 
feet 'ong. Glass and doors. $ 188 1.47 $ 113,425 

Alternate entrance 4 doors 
3x8s 24 feet long with 
storefronts. Glass and doors 
infiltration issues at windows 

and doors1 $ 1,063 8.16 $ 10,000 

7 skylights need replacing 4 x 
4 

$ 24 0.22 $ 2,500 

Replace existing garage door 
with new insulated door- $ 59 0.49 $ 16,000 
motorized 20" 

Replace heating system with $ 2,434 20.84 $ 40,000 
Condensing Boiler 

Replace domestic hot water $ 222 
heater 

2.03 $ 35,000 

Time clock Control for S 5,017 37.10 $ 10,500 
Gvmnasium AHU 
Reduction in LPD $ 862 6.06 $ 22,843 

Occupancy Sensors in 
restrooms, locker rooms, 
offices, activity rooms, 

$ 231 1.62 $ 5,200 
storage rooms, kitchen, 
hallways, utility room, 
electrical room and garage 

Daylight Controls in lobby, 
vestibule, restrooms, locker $ 506 3.59 S 36,231 
rooms, offices, activity 
rooms, kitchen, and garage 
LED lighting for exit signs S 132 0.95 $ 2,960 
Total if all measures are 
accepted $ 12,502 96.56 $ 576,159 

"'Indicates Engmeering IS reqUired and appro)(lmate cost is Included 

EHglDte fOr 
Additional 

Grants 
(DCEO&IL 

Clean 
Eneray) 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

No 

No 

No 

Yes 

Yes 

yes 

yes 

Yes 

Yes 

yes 

l'f ECMs 2 and 3 are se'ected the cost for fCM 4 would not be necessary and the 
dollars and energy saved per year from ECM 4 would apply to ECMs 2 and 3 
collectivelv. 



,Ii 

Energy 
Conservation 

Measures 

1 

2 

*3 

4 

5 

6 

Potential Energy Conservation Measures 
Police Department 

Greenhouse 
I 

Gas Emissions 
, Reduced 

II 
$/year (metric tons I 

De$lcription Saved C02e) capital, Cost 

Replace 2 3'x8' foot doors at 

the entrance with double 

pane - replace entire 

storefront glass - 60 feet $ 166 1.18 $ 19,300 

Add occupancy sensors in all 

restrooms, offices, stoage 

rooms, closets, breakrooms, 

kitchen, boiler room, 

electrical room, mechanical 

rooms, and elevator room $ 2,290 16.45 $ U,OOO 

Add photosensors to offices $ 1.101 7.91 $ 72,141 

Demand Control Ventilation 

in Main RTU and Community 

Center RTU $ 6,587 47.35 $ 50,000 

BAS Training, document 

sequence of operations1 

lED Exit Signs $ 13 0.09 $ 8,288 

Total If all measures are 

accepted $ 10,157 72.98 $ 161,729 

*Indlcates Engineering is required and appro)(imate cost is included 

lAdditional savings is possible if bldg manager trained to operate BAS 

ElIg'ible for 
Additional 

Grants 
(DCEO&ll 

Clean 
Energy) 

, 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

yes 

No 



Energy 
" 

Conservation 

Measures 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

"'9 

, 

Potential Energy Conservation Measures 

Public Works 

Green~ouse 

Gas Emissions 

Redu~d 

'I $/year (metric tons II 
Description Saved COle) capital Cost 

iRe place roof membrane over 

Vehicle Maintenance $ 100 0.75 $ 28,600 

Windows replaced with 

uncoated double-pane $ 82 0.61 $ 14,200 

Caulk, weatherstrip and repair 

doors, floors, and other leaks 

to the outside. S 4,337 32.32 $ 38,925 

Replace current boiler with 

condensing boiler with 90% 

efficiency boiler $ 60 0.45 S 25,000 

Remove current in-wall AC 

units in Director's Offoce and 

Break Room . Install wall-

mounted split AC units. Repair 

wall to seal up any infiltration. S 28 0.20 $ 4,000 
Replace Unit Heaters in 

Garage, Car Repair, and 

Vehicle Maintenance with Gas-

Fired Radiant Heating $ 9,781 72.90 S 60,000 

Replacing lighting with high 

effiCiency flourescence and 

install LED lights for exit signs S 969 6.92 $ 13,539 

Install Occupancy Sensors in 

chlorine room, offices, 

restrooms, and break rooms S 180 1.16 $ 2,600 

Install Photosensors to harvest 

daylight in Directors Office and 

General Office $ 133 0.95 $ 12,399 

Total if all measures are 

accepted $ 15,670 116.26 $ 199,263 

"'Indicates Engineering required and approximate cost included 

Ellslble for I 
Additional 

Grants 

(DCEO&IL I 

Clean 

Enersv) 

No 

Yes 

No 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

yes 

Yes 

Yes 



Enersv 
Conservation 

M'easures 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

B 

9 

·10 

1-

Potential Energy Conservation Measures 
South Ftre Station 

-

\1 
Greenhouse 

I Gas Emissions 
Reduced I 

$/year (metric tons of 

Description Sa~ed C~) C_pltal Cost 

Seal the vent in IT room $ 117 0.88 $ 700 

Remove old exhaust fan and 

associated switch and seal 

vent in kitchen. $ 71 0.53 $ 500 

Paint roof white $ . 

Furr out and insulate 

Lieutenant's office/room by 

adding R-14 insulation . $ 149 1.12 $ 7,137 

Replace the glass door system 

(both sets) in the vestibule. 

They are single pane, old, and 

not sealed well $ 60 0.45 $ 27,352 

Occupancy sensors for 

restrooms, utility room, 

oxygen room, office, 

refrigerator room, vestibule $ 49 0.35 $ 1,400 

Replace skylight and add a 

occupant/photosensor in the 

men's bathroom $ 76 0.54 $ 400 

Seal and insulate ductwork $ 49 0.36 $ 1,000 

Replace Incandescents with 

Compact Fluorescents and 

Tl2s with TSs $ 2,136 15.30 $ 10,719 
Daylight sensor in Apparatus 

Bay $ 374 2.69 $ 12,592 

Total If all measures are 

accepted $ 3,081 22.22 $ 61,800 

·indlcates Englneerrng IS reqUired and approxImate cost IS included 

Eligible for 

Addition 

Grants 

(DCEO&IL 

I Clean 

Ene'IY) 

No 

No 

No 

Yes 

yes 

Yes 

yes 

No 

Yes 

Yes 



ALTERNATIVE VEHICLE ANALYSIS 

Ford Crown Victoria 
50,000 

14 miles/gallon 3571 gallons/year 
miles/year 

Toyota Prius 
50,000 

48 miles/gallon 1041 gallons/year 
miles/year 

Sailings 2530 gallons/year 
$7,084/year at 

$2.80 per galion 

Vl!hlcle Fleet 

Quantity Make & Model Year 
Frequency of 

Fuel 
Purpose 

Use 

Ford Crown 2003 

Frontline Cars 10 Victoria to 24/7 Gasoline 
Dodge Charger 2008 
Ford E)(plorers 

Mixed Use Cars(old 
Various makes 

1997 
8 hours - 5 Gasoline & 

frontline cars or 43 
and models 

to 
days per week Diesel 

confiscated carsl 2007 

Evidence Van 1 Ford Van 2002 Sporadic Gasoline 

Graffiti Removal 
1 

Dodge Van Ford 1997 
Sporadic 

Gasoline 

Vehicles F-350 Truck 2002 Diesel 

Animal Control Van 1 Ford Van 1997 Sporadic Gasoline 

Large Transport Van 1 
Ford Transport 

2003 Sporadic Gasoline 
Van 

Rapid Response Van 1 Ford Van 1993 Sporadic Gasoline 

Motorcycle 2 Harley Davidson 2004 Sporadic Gasoline 

Ali-terrain 2 Kawasaki 2007 Sporadic Gasoline 

Command Vehicle 1 Chevy P30 1988 Very limited Gasoline 

Total 63 



/ . 

Mayor Robert Lovero & 
the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Re: Youth Services Page 

Dear Mayor Lovere and members of the Berwyn City Council: 

Please approve the replacement of a Youth Services Page position . This is a 
replacement position after the resignation of Daniel Rosales. The job description 
is attached. 

Thank you for your consideration of this request. 

Respectfully yours, 

~~'-~~d (!~~~ 
Tammy Clausen 
Library Director 



, I 

YOUTH SERVICES PAGE 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CLASSSPECunCATION 

DISTINGUISHING FEATURES OF WORK: 

Position is under the direction of the Youth Services Reference Librarian, sorting and 
shelving library materials. 

ILLUSTRATIVE EXAMPLES OF WORK: 

1. Shelves books, periodicals, audio-visual, realla and other materials in the correct 
order. 

2. Shifts materials as needed. 
3. Completes assigned shelf-reading. 
4. Straightens tables and chairs. 
5. Shelves books that are lying on tables and shelves. 
6. Maintains the neat and orderly appearance of the library, especially in the Primary 

Room. 
7. Perfonns other duties as assigned. 

EDUCATION: 

High school student, or older. 

EXPERIENCE: 

None required. Training will be provided. 



Berwyn Public Library 
Staff Vacancy 

Position: Page - Youth Services 
Salary: $8.00 
Schedule: 13 hours 
Application deadline: March 8, 2010 
Start date: 

DISTINGUISHING FEATURES OF WORK: 

Under the general supervision of the Youth Services Reference Librarian, sorts and 
shelves library materials. 

ILLUSTRATIVE EXAMPLES OF WORK 

1. Shelves library materials in the correct order; shifts materials as needed; reads 
shelves; straightens shelves. 

2. Straightens tables and chairs; shelves materials that are lying on tables; 
maintains the neat and orderly appearance of the library. 

3. Performs other duties as assigned. 

EDUCATION: 

Minimum requirement completion of at least 2 years of high SchooL 

EXPERIENCE: 

Requires elementary knowledge of library functions and procedures. 

Applications are to be picked up and returned to the 
City of Berwyn Human Resources Department 

6700 West 26 th Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 

All City of Berwyn applicants will be afforded equal employment opportunity without discrimination 
because of race, color, religion, sex, martial status, national origin or ancestry, citizenship status, age, 
physical or mental disability unrelated to ability, sexual orientation, military starus or unfavorable 
discharge from military service. 

February 19. 2010 



A Century of Progress with Pride 

March 9, 2010 

Honorable Mayor, Robert 1. Lavero 

And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Indemnification Resolution 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Anthony T. Bertuea 
City Attorney 

The attached Resolution is being submitted for your consideration. The Resolution must be approved by 

this Honorable Body prior to lOOT granting permission for the City to install "red light cameras" in 

conj unction with their traffic control devices. 

The Law Department is requesting your concurrence in the approval of this Resolution. 

Respectfully submitted. 

~J.If~~ 
Anthony T. Bertuca 
City Attorney 

6700 Weat 26· Street Berwyn, mjnois 60402·0701 Telephone.! (708) 788·2660 Falu (708) 788-2567 www.berwyn.il,gov 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 

RESOLUTION 
NUMBER ________ _ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS TO INDEMNIFY THE STATE OF ILLINOIS FOR 

PHOTO ENFORCEMENT EQUIPMENT ATTACHED TO mOT 
FACILITIES 

ROBERT J. LOVERO, Mayor 
THOMAS J. PAVLIK, Clerk 

JOSEPH M. KROC, Treasurer 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 
JEFFREY G. BOYAJIAN 

MARGARET PAUL 
l\flCHELE D. SKRYD 
CESAR A. SANTOY 

THEODOREJ.POLASHEK 
RAFAEL AVILA 

NORA LAURETO 

Aldermen 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Berwyn all 3-2-20 I 0 



RESOLUTION No.: _______ _ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS TO 
INDEMNIFY THE STATE OF ILLINOIS FOR PHOTO ENFORCEMNT 

EQUIPMENT A IT ACHED TO mOT FACILITIES 

WHEREAS. the Ci1y of Berwyn is desirous of constructing certain facilities attached to 

the TIlinois Department of Transportation facilities (UIDOT"); and 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Department of Trnnsportation has determined that the 

attachment of photo enforcement equipment to its facilities mny be pennitted and is in the 

interest of increasing the safety of the monitoring public: and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Safety Engineering Pol icy Memorandum 2-07, lOOT will 

issue a permit for the attachment of photo enforcement equipment to IDOT facilities 

provided that [DOT has obtained a resolution from the City of Berwyn agreeing to 

indemnify the State of llJinois; and 

WHEREAS. the City of Berwyn deems it in the interest of the Clty of Belwyn to adopt 

such a resolution to facilitate safety of the motoring public. 

THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Mayor and the COlmcil of the City of Berwyn 

agree to lndemnify and hold hannless the State of Illinois for any claims that may be 

made against the State of Illinois, its employees, agents and the Illinois Dep311ment of 

Transportation ac; a result of attachment and operation of photo enforcement equipment to 

IDOT facilities. 

[INTENTIONALLY LEFf BLANK] 

2 



ADOPTED this __ day of March, 2010, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows : 

YES NO ABSENT PRESENT 
Chapman 

Boy_ajian 

Paul 

Skryd 

Santoy 

Polashek: 

Avila 

Laureto 

(Mayor Levero) 

TOTAL 

APPROVED by the Mayor on March _____ .2010. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas 1. Pavlik 

CITY CLERK 

3 

Robert I. Levero 

MAYOR 



March 9. 2010 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk 
City of Berwyn 
6700 W. 26111 Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

Re: 06M41286 

Dear Mr. Pavlik: 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Anthony T. Bertuea 
City Attorney 

Please put an item on the March 9. 2010 agenda, authorizing the settlement of the above referenced 

matter for the total of $9.000.00, based upon the City Council authority granted in Executive session. 

Very truly yours. 

~/.~ 
Anthony T. Bertuca 
City Attorney 

6700 West 26'h Street Berwyn, JUinoiA 60402·0701 Telephon~ (708) 788-2660 Fu; (708) 788·2567 www.berwyn.i.I.gov 



~\ ~ of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

John Wysocki 
Finance Director 

6700 West 26111 Street Berwyn, Illinois S0402'0701 Telephone: (708) 788'2660 Fax: (708) 788'2567 
www.berwyn.il. gov 

To: Mayor Lovero and City Council 

From: John Wysocki ~ ~ 
Subject: 2010 Budget 

Date: March 5, 2010 

Attached is the proposed 2010 budget for your consideration, Also, attached is the Notice of Public 
Hearing regarding the budget that we propose to hold on March 23,2010 at 5:45 PM, Please approve 
publication of the public hearing notice. 

At the March 23 City Council meeting a related appropriation ordinance will be included on the 
agenda. This ordinance which summarizes the detailed budget will need to be adopted and filed with 
the County prior to March 31, 201 O. 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions that you may have after you have had a chance to 
review the proposed budget. 



LEGAL NOTICE 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

1. A public hearing on the proposed 2010 Appropriation Ordinance 
(Budget) for the City of Berwyn, Illinois for 2010 will be held on 
March 23, 2010 at j:45 p.m. at the City Hall Council Chambers 
located at 6700 West 26th Street, Berwyn, Illinois 60402. 

II. The proposed 2010 Appropriation Ordinance will be available for 
public inspection at the office of the City Clerk, Berwyn City Hall, 
6700 West 26th Street, Berwyn, Illinois 60402, during nonna! business 
hours Monday through Friday until March 23, 2010 or until said 
Appropriation Ordinance is passed by the Berwyn City Council. 

III. This notice is being published in compliance with Illinois law, 65 
ILCS 5/8 2-9 as well as local ordinances. All interested parties are 
invited and encouraged to attend this Public Hearing. The Berwyn 
City Hall building is handicapped accessible and ADA compliant. 

By Order of Mayor Robert J. Lovero and the Berwyn City Council 

S:II Thomas J. Pavlik, City Clerk, City of Berwyn 

March 10,2010 



February 23, 2010 

To: Mayor Robert 1. Lovero 
Berwyn City Council 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Re: 2009 C.D.B.G. Sidewalk Replacement 
C.D.B.G. Project # 09-02 
Recommendation to approve Contractor Pay Estimate #2 

Robert P. Schiller 
Director of Public Works 

Attached is a letter from Frank Novotny and Associates, Inc. requesting City Council approval of the 
Engineer's Payment Estimate No.2 for the 2009 CDBG Sidewalk Replacement awarded to Suburban 
Concrete, Inc. 

Suburban Concrete has completed all concrete work and restoration associated with this project. They have 
been provided a punch list of items to be completed in the spring season when weather pennits. Staff has 
reviewed the attached Pay Estimate #2 and concurs with the recommendation prepared by Frank Novotny 
and Associates . A retainage in the amount of 10% of the total project will be held until ftnal completion and 
approval of all outstanding items. 

Recommended Actions; 

Staff recommends the City Council approve payment to Suburban Concrete, Inc. in the amount of$6,701.15 
for the 2009 CnBG Sidewalk Program. 

Robert Schiller 
Director of Public Works 

I Public Works Drive Berwyn. Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 749-4700 Fax: (708) 749-9503 www.berwyn-iLgov 



FTank:Novotny&'Associate~ Inc. 
825 Midway Drive • WU1Qwbroo~ IL • 6062"1. TeJephOIJs: (630) 88'1-8640 • Far (630) 887-01/J2 

OM1 Engin8B1s1 
Municipa.l OonflDlt{wts 

Mr. John Wysocki 
Director of Finance 
City of Berwyn 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

Re: 2009 C.O.B.G. Sidewalk Replacement 
C.D.B.G. Project No. 09..02 
Engineer's Payment Estimate No.2 

Dear John: 

January 21,2010 

This letter is to , certify that Suburban Concrete, Inc. has furnished labor and 
materials for the above~captioned project in accordance with the attached "Engineer's 
Payment Estimate No.2". 

To date, the Contractor has completed all of the sidewalk removal and 
repla~ment and landscaping restoration. The Contractor has been given a punchlist of 
items to be completed in the spring, when weather permits. 

Having retained ten percent (10%) of the total cost of completed work, we hereby 
recommend the payment of $6,701.15 to Suburban Concrete, Inc.I .21227 W, 
Commercial Drive, Unit B. Mundelein, IL 60060, to be paid in accordance with the 
terms' of their Contract Also enclosed is a copy of the "Waiver of Uen" for the payment 
amount. 

If you should have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

JEF/ce 
Endosure 

Sincerely, 

FRANK NOVOTNY & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

~f.~ 
John E. Fitzgerald, P.E. 

cc: Mr. Robert Schiller, Director of Public Works, w/Enc. 
Suburban Concrete, w/Enc. 
File No. 09283 



OWNER: 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

PAYMENT TO: 

PAYMENT ESTIMATE 

City or Berwyn 
2009 C.O.B.G. Sidewalk Replacement 
C.D.B.G. Project No. 09-02 

PROJECT NO : 

Suburban Concrele, Inc., 21227 W. Commercial DrIve, Unit e, Mundelein, IL 60060 

Pago 1 or 1 

09283 

ESTIMATE NO.: 2 FROM: November 24, 2009 TO: January 15, 2010 

Item Awarded A IOroVed For Payment 
No DncriDtion UnIt Quantity Amount Over Under Quantltv Unit Price Amount 
1 Sidewalk Removal S.F. 12000 $ 12,000.00 596 12596 $ 1.00 $ 12,596.00 
2 Portland Cement Conctele Sidewalk. 5' S.F. 12000 36,840.00 596 12596 3.07 38,66II.n 
3 Detectable warnings S.F. 100 2.500.00 lOC 25.0< 
4 Coml*lelion Curb and Guller Removal FOOT 100 600.00 100 5.0< 
S Combination Conc:rele CUlb and Gutter, Type 6-6.12 FOO, 50 5OO.OC 50 10.00 

8 ComblnaliOll Concrete Cufb and GuIlef, Type a.a 1B 1'00' 60 500.00 50 10.00 
7 PIpe Undefdnlln6, PVC, 8" 018. FOOT 20 400.00 2~ 20.00 
8 Orlveway Pavement Removal S.Y. 30 460.00 30 15.00 
II Portland Cement Concr&le Orlveway ?avemenl. ," S.Y. 30 900.00 

~ 30.00 
10 POffIsnd CMlent Conttekl Alley PII"Vem8nt Patching, B" S.V. 2!i 750.00 30.00 

11 Pllvemenl Removal and Replacement, 8' P.C. COncrete S.V. 1~ 600.00 10 60.00 
Bose and 3" Hot-Mbr Asp4\!ltl Sulface 

12 T opscll Furnish and Place, 4"' S.y. 200 1,000.00 70 130 5.00 650.00 
13 Sodding S.y. 75 1,125.00 76 16.00 
14 Sooding, Class I ACRE 0.06 600.00 0.02 0.03 10,000.00 300.00 
16 Incldefllal HoloMlx Asphall Svr18eing TON 10 1,500.00 Ie 150.OC 

16 French Drains C.Y. e 1,250.00 5 250.00 
17 COIc.h Basins. Type C (Specjal) EACH 1 450.00 1 4SO.00 
18 T ralllc Conlrol & p,oIedJQn lS. 1 1.800.00 1 1,500.00 1,500.00 
19 "'SUl1lllCe Provisions - Complete lS. 1 3,000.00 1 3,000.00 3.000.00 

TOTAL: S 66266.00 $ 6U15.72 

RECOMME.IIIOEO FOR PAYMENT BY: Total Value of Completed Wori< ................ $ 66,715.72 

FRANK NOVO'NY & ASSOCIATES,INC. UBI 10% RetaIned $ 5,671.57 

John E. ~a. P.E. 

Sub·Totel .................... _ .. .......................... ....... $ 61,044.16 

BV: Leu Paymant Eetlmate No.1 ...................... $ 44,343.00 

DATE: January 15, 2010 TOTAL THIS PAYMENT ESTIMATE NO.2 ....... $ 6,701.15 



/ti;\: STATE Otl1UJNOfS 

~ COUNTY Of COOK 

TO WHOM lTMAY CONCERN: 

WAIVER OF WN TO DAIIt 

WHElWAS tho undcr¥il!ned hu been ~mploycd by CITY OF 13BR WYN 
to Iilrniah LABOR, MA TEIUAL , EQUIPMBNT 
for tile PrumlJ8i IcnOWll &J 200!) CDBG STDfiW AJ..1( JU!MOVn & REPl,ACJ:iM.QNT 
ofwhicb CITY OP BER.WYN ix the owner. 

Ewuw/l 

THE w\detaignod, fol' and in OOll5ldera1lon ofSlX THOUSAND SEVEN l1\.JNDR'P.D AND ONF. DOllAR 15/00 
($6701.15) DoUal'S, IlI\d other SOOd Dud valuable considerations, Ihc receipt whenlofb ~y noknowledSed, do(e,} 
hcroby waive IU1d l'61\\41e Dny and .11 filll1 Of dalrn ot at tigllt to, lien, ul\dCl' tho l1atults of lhe State of lDiooit, relallnH 10 mechanics' 
liens, 1'I111t respect to aDd on &aid above-deaoribod prerul.lOlll, and U,e ilrlprov5menlS I.bcr"olt, aDd on the rnalAltal, rvdures, apparatus or 
IlWlbinery ftulIlshcd. and 011 I lie lnon~y" t\utds Or (Ither tOrWdutalions due or In becon\e due totD the owner, on account of all Illbor, 
eervices. materi41, fixtures. tpp.lrlius or macl1il\tll)', fllrnUhcd 10 L1li. date by 1116 Ulldanigned for Lho lhovc-dtsc.tlbed prcRll~s. 
lNCLUDfNO EXTRAS.' 
OATE 2/W20 10 COMPAN V NAME Sva 

A\)DltESS 21227 W ~iAt.1Ili).E~~~~~-Mf.1ljf} 
SICNATUR~ AN}) TITLY. 

ST"'Tf3 OF ll.l..1NOlS 

COUNTY OP COOK 

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 

CONTRACTOR'S AfPIDAVIT 

THF. UNDI:!ItSIGNBD, (NAM i) JOHN LEVBRtCK BEING nUL Y SWOaN, DBPOSES 
ANn SA'YS THA1'.HE Olt SHE 18 (pOSlTJON) PRIlSID£NT OF 
(COMPANY NAME) SUBUltSlIN CONCRETE me. WHO.lS THE 
CON'l'RACTOR FURNISlUNO SLDEWAT.K RIlMDV IlL &. iWPLACF..Mm4T WORK ON THE HUll..t>lNG 
LOCATED AT VARIOUS LOCATIONS 
OWNED BY CITY OF BERWYN 
That lhe 101111 amount mUle CIHltroc:t including ~- is $66,165.00 on which he Of sb& bu rectrlv9d payment of 
$44,343.00 prior to (bb pay~ That All waivtn nre IlUO, c:orrec:t And goauiD& and dtllivercl\ unco!1diuOIllllfy and lhat 
there IJ [10 c,-Im eitbor 10841 or equitable tn dafea11he yolldity of laid walvllTI. Th.at the foJlowina arc the nam6S and add~ ot' an 
partiN who have fum;a/wJd IllAtc:rl&l 0' lAbor, or both, fur said work .00 all pnnlea havlna oontr&ct. or tub canlT1lct~ tor SpeculO 
portloru uf said woric Of fOf TTUlterlAl cnillfing imo Ibc OOflsUuctlOD thol'OC)f aad !he amount due or to becomo due IOIlllch. WId 1M! !he 
itOJlUl mcntlooed include alilabur and material J'eQ\tlred to compMe said work IIOCOrding to pIms and apeell1Cl1lioJlS: 

- AMOU>ii''' TlUS ML/INCll '1lS W71ATI'OR ~~ IHY1IACf I'lOCI! 
lI<Cll.lll1lO:t1o.\l" PAlO I'AVM!NI' IlIlK . - L.~OR·&J;QtJTJ? , .. 6.1 86.5? , 30760,21 • J 495.61 ··iI930.74 .. 

CONCJl6T~ , 20 078.4t 13 ~8l.78 120.5.5'2'" -- 3290.!~~ , 

'" -- .. - . 
- ~ .. , .. . ..... 

'"~ .' ",,-

!NO ~J!08' TO 00t.A~.K/'R. . .~,26S.00 . . 4'13'13.00 6701.15 4' _ • 15220.85 TOTAL u..~' A)4D MA~AI.1Ncwo 

ThBI'tharo are 110 other COUlnIcli rOt I4icl work OUlStA\1diq. and thlll there is lIotblng due 01' to (:Qme due 10 any penon for mB.lCtIBl, 
labor or other work of any kind dono or 10 bel donellpon nr in co~1 I n abOY1lItD1ed. 

DATE ;; - ,; '1- )0 

SunSCRI BP.O AND SWORN TO Bt:FORP. MI! THJS..?'L.-_"""';' 

·1,iXTRAS INCt.UOli nUT Aide NCl1'UMnTiD'ro CHANOIi 
0Rflfi1lA 00111 "RAI, AtID W\UT1'flN.·ro nm CON'rRAc.:l'. 

f.1122 RSJ96 Provided by Chicago TSt~ III8UI'8I1C1l Compaoy 



A Century of Progress with Pride 

March 5, 2010 

To: Mayor Robert J.lovero & City Council Members 

From: Nicole Campbell, City Traffic Engineer 

Re: 2200 alock of Clarence - referral item 1-2 August 25, 2009 

Nico)e L. Campbell 
Traffic Engineer 

A parking study was completed for the 2200 block of Clarence and the surrounding area. Meetings have been held 
with Parking Enforcement and the Post Office, to review the findings of the study and to help resolve the issues. 
Suggested changes to the parking In this area are: 

1. Sign the angled parking on the east and west sides of the 2200 block of Clarence Avenue as ''2 hour 
parking except vehicles displaying zone 4-1 permit" . 

2. Sign the parallel parking on the west side of the 2200 block of Wesley Avenue as ~2 hour parking 9am-
9pm Mon-Fri 9am-5pm Saturdayn. 

These changes are intended to bring some relief to the residents in the area and clarify the parking restrictions for 
visitors and enforcement. The area around the post office is a high traffic area and will have to be continually 
monitored. 

Recommendations 
Staff recommends that the suggested Signing changes are approved and forwarded onto Public Works for 
installation. Staff will provide updated ordinances and will continue to monitor the area for compliance. 

Sinaerely, 

~ 
Nicole Campbell, Traffic Engineer 

6700 West 26110 SU'Ccl Berwyn.lllinl'is 60402-0701 Telephone ' (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 7gg-2567 www.bcrwyn-il.gov 



A Century of Progress with Pride 
March 5, 2010 

To; Mayor Robert J. Lovero & City Council Members 

From: Nicole Campbell, City Traffic Engineer 

Re: Tum Restrictions at 141h Street and Oak Park Avenue 

Nicole L. CampbeU 
Traffic Engineer 

As a follow up to a school traffic safety meeting held last year between the school district, police department and myself, it 
was requested that a traffic study be performed to determine the feasibility of prohibited turns, during certain school hours, 
at the intersection of 14111 Street and Oak Park Avenue. Field observations were made and traffic counts were performed. 

The large number of right and left turning movements in conjunction with the heav~ pedestrian movement congests the 
traffic in front of the Prairie Oak School further backing up in the intersection of 15 street and Oak Park Avenue. Left 
tuming traffic from south bound Oak Park Avenue contends with a large number of pedestrian crossings. 

Recommendations 

Restrict north bound left turns and south bound left turns at the intersection of 14111 Street and Oak Park Avenue between 
7am to 9am and 2pm to 4pm on school days. Please forward onto the Public Works Department for installation of the 
signs. Staff will provide updated ordinances. 

~ 
Nicole Campbell, Traffic Engineer 

6700 West 26'h Street Berwyn. Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 7l/.8-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2567 www.tx:rwyn-il.gov 



K. Consent Agenda 



e ~J of Berwyn Nona N. Chapman 
1 at Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26,b Street Berwyn,lllinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 749-6401 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

www.berwyn.il.gov 

March 5, 2010 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the Cfty Council 
City of Berwyn 

SUBJECT: Payroll March 3) 2010 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The current payroll has been prepared for review by the finance department and is ready for approval at the 
March 9, 2010 meeting. 

Payroll: March 3, 2010 in the amount of $819,924.66. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Nona N. Chapman 
Budget Committee Chairman 



e -64:r Berwyn Nona N. Chapman 
1 at Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26 lh Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 749-6401 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

www.berwyn-il .gov 

March 5, 2010 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the City Council 
City of Berwyn 

SUBJECT: Payables March 9, 2010 meeting 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The current payables were prepared for review by the finance department and are ready for approval at 
the March 9, 2010 meeting. 

Total Payables: March 9, 2010 in the amount of $657,418.83. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Nona N. Chapman 
Budget Committee Chairman 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 31612009 - To Payment Date: 311012010 

lumb4H' Date Status Void Reason ReconclledJ Source Payee Name Transaction ReeoocHed Difference 
VoIded Date Amount Amount 

11 • General Cash 

~ 

6178 0212412010 Open Accounts Payable Char1es D.Lazzara $300.00 

6179 03lO1/2010 Open AlXounts Payable CNH CAPITAL AMERICA llC $2,452.63 

6180 03/0112010 Open Accounts Payabte Fort Dearborn Lite Insurance $4,519.12 
Company 

6181 0310112010 Open AccQunls Payable HEAL THCARE AND FAMILY $200.02 
SERVICES 

6182 03/01/2010 Open Accounts Payable Martin Pena $1,475.00 

6163 03101/2010 Open Accounts Payable MG ConstructIon $6,100.00 

6184 0310112010 Open Accounls Payable TELE-TRON ACE HARDWARE $76.52 

6185 03/01/2010 Open Accounts Payable UNIQUE MANAGEMENT $268.50 
SERVICES,INC. 

6186 0310112010 Open Accounts Payable UNITED PARCEL SERVICE $37.96 

6187 0310312010 Open Accounts Payable Richard J. Kalivoda $45,000.00 

6188 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable 1 st Source America $4.656.10 

6189 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable 3rd Generation Plaster1ng & Stucco, $712.50 
Benjamin Brainerd 

6190 03110/2010 Open Accounts Payable 5 Alarm Are & Safety Equipment, Inc. $745.00 

6191 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable ABC Commerdat MaintenanC@ $4,410.00 
Sel'lices, Inc. 

6192 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable ACURA,fNC. $63,029.15 

6193 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable ACT SECURITY SERVICES $420.21 

6194 0311012010 Open Accounts Peyable ALLIANCE ENTERTAINMENT ,LLC $49.48 

6195 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable Amador Olavarria & Olga R.Nieves $1,475.00 

6196 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable AMAZON.COM $154.73 

user: Burns, J . A . Pages: 1 of 11 Friday. March 05, 2010 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 3/6/2009 - To Payment Date: 3/1012010 

lumber Data Status Void Reason Reconciled! Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

6197 03/1012010 OPef1 Accounts Payable AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING $1 ,865.00 
CORP. 

6196 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable Antonio Montiel $24.98 

6199 03/1012010 Open Accounts PayalJje Aqua Chill of Chicago # 22 $420.00 

6200 03/1012010 Open ACCQunts Payable AT & T Global Services, Inc. $46.80 

6201 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable AT&T $13,864.74 

6202 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable AT&T $5,576.48 

6203 0311012010 Open ACCQunts Payable AUTOMATEO LOGIC $800.00 

6204 0311012010 Open Aoc:ounts Payable AVAYAINC. $40.15 

6205 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable BAKER & TAYLOR $1,773.55 

6206 03110/2010 Open Accounts Payable Baker & Taylor. Inc. $95.95 

6207 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable BANC OF AMERICA PUB CAPTl $5,512.68 
CORP 

6208 0311012010 Open Aooounts Payable BBC AUOIOBOOKS AMERICA $461 .75 

6209 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable BERWYN PARK DISTRICT $25.00 

6210 03110/2010 O!Jen Accounts Payable COW GOVERNMENT,INC. $836.85 

6211 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable CHICAGO BADGE COMPANY ~3.47 

6212 0311012010 Open Aoc:ounts Payable CHICAGO OFFICE TECHNOLOGY $16.22 
GROUP 

6213 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable CICERO FIRE ACADEMY $1,520.00 

6214 03110/2010 Open Aooounts Payable CINTAS#769 $192.00 

6215 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable COMCAST CABLE $62.95 

6216 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable ComEd $849.46 

6217 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable COMMUNICATION REVOLVING $439.15 
FUND 

6218 03/1012010 Opeo Accounts Payable COMPUTER POWER $1,665.00 
SYSTEMS,INC. 

user: Burns, J . A. Pages: 2 of 11 Friday, March 05,2010 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 3/612009 - To Payment Data: 3/10/2010 

lumber Date Status Void Reason Reconciled} Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Dlffltrence 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

6219 0311012010 Open Acoounts Payable Crime Analysts of IRinois $60.00 
Association,lnc. 

6220 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable Cross COIJntry SkIer lLC $14.95 

6221 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable CYNTHIA MONTAVON $200.00 

6222 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable Dell Marketing, 1.P $89.99 

6223 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable Diamond Graphics, Inc. 52.785.00 

6224 03/1012010 Open Acx;ounts Payable Doug Dawson Web SeNIcas $836.00 

6225 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable DRIVERS LICENSE GUIDE $137.65 
COMPANY 

6226 03110/2010 Open Accounts Payable DUNCAN PARKING $53.38 
TECHNOLOGIES 

6227 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable OVA.COM 581.95 

6228 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable Eariene Calcote $1,475.00 

6229 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable ESSCO SUBSCRIPTION SERVICE $5,832.90 

6230 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable Eck Inc. $8,089.00 

6231 03110/2010 Open Accounts Payable FEDERAL EXPRESS $87.13 
CORPORA nON 

6232 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable Felco Vending, Inc. $87.25 

6233 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable FIRE SAFElY CONSULTANTS,INC. $1,385.00 

6234 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable FLASH ELECTRIC CO. $1.525.00 

6235 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable FREEWAY FORD TRUCK SALES $206.76 
INC 

6236 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable FULLMER LOCKSMITH SERVICE $613.50 
INC 

6237 03110/2010 Open Acoounts Payable G.NEIL $57.99 

6236 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable Gabriel Auto Parts $113.24 

6239 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable Gavin R.Zarbock 5825.00 

6240 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable GoldslJne.Skrodzki,Russtan,Nemec & $7,125.36 
Hoff,l TO. 

user: Burns, J. A. Pages: 3 of 11 Friday. March 05. 2010 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 3/612009 - To Payment Date: 3/1012010 

lumber Date Status VoId Reason Reconciled! Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

6241 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable Goldsline,Skrodzki,Russian,Nemec & 52,286.24 
Hoff,LTD. 

6242 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable GREGORY OIMENNA $8.02 

6243 0311012010 Open A!;(:ounts Payable HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 5265.40 

6244 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable Illinois Fire Chiefs' AssociaUon $300.00 

6245 0311012010 Open Accoonts Payable ILLINOIS PAPER & COPIER CO. 522.92 

6246 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES $817.90 

6247 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable JACK PHELAN CHEVROLET 5137.53 

6248 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable JACK'S RENTAL INC $3,130.21 

6249 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable John Devens $400.00 

6250 0311012010 Open Acoounts Payable Josephine Tucci $17.37 

6251 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable KATHY SEXTON $8.48 

6252 03110/2010 Open Accounts Payable KOO OF IlLtNOIS,L TO. $99.90 

6253 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable KEY eQUIPTMENT FINANCE $4,582.40 

6254 0311012010 OJ:)en Acoounts Payable Knit Simple 519.97 

6255 03110/2010 Open Accounts Payable LANDMARK AUDIOBOOKS 5124.20 

6256 0311012010 Open A!;(:ounts Payable LEXISNEXIS $231.00 

6257 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable LWRC $1,627.67 

6258 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable M.C. DRYWALL FINISHERS,INC., $240.00 
ED MIJANGOS 

6259 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable MARLIN LEASING $753.34 

6260 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable McDONALD MODULAR 5190.00 
SOLUTIONS, INC. 

6261 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable McDONOUGH MECHANICAL 56,218.66 
SERVICES ,INC. 

6262 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable MEDICAL REIMBURSEMENT $5,140.00 
SERVICeS,INC. 

user: Burns, J. A. Pages: 4 of 11 Friday, March 05, 2010 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 3/612009 - To Payment Date: 3110/2010 

lumber Date Status Vold Reason Reconciled! Source Payee Name Transaction ReconcJJed Difference 
VoIded Date Amount Amount 

6263 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable MENARDS $26.33 

6264 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable MENARDS $8.30 

6265 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable MG Construction $8.855.00 

6266 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable Micro Center AIR $770.96 

6267 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable MICRO MARKETING.LLC 5267.68 

6268 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable MIDWEST TAPE $342.84 

6269 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable MLB FINANCIAL SERVICES,LTD $170.00 

6270 03110/2010 Open Accounts Payable Monroe Truck EQuiplmeot $506.00 

6271 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable NAEIR $230.19 

6272 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable NATIONAL FIRE PROTECTION $270.00 
ASSOC 

6273 03{1012010 Open Accounts Payable NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS $737.60 

6274 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable NORTH AMERICAN SALT CO. $76,945.67 

6275 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable NORTHERN ILLINOIS POLICE $3,300.00 
ALARM SYSTEM 

6276 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable OFFICE DEPOT $409.48 

62n 03110/2010 Open Accounts Payable PACE VAN POOL $400.00 

6278 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable Palricta Sykes & Carolyn Walker $1,475.00 

6279 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable PEARSON EDUCATION $483.68 

6280 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable POSITIVE PROMOTIONS,INC. $23.70 

6281 03/1012010 Open ACCQunts Payable PROFESSIONAL PEST $65.00 
CONTROL,INC. 

6282 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable RANDOM HOUSE.INC. $345.00 

6283 03/1012010 Opan Accounts Payable Rex Newell $250.00 

6284 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable RIZZA FORD $507.10 

6285 03110/2010 Open Accounts Payable ROBERT DWAN $97.96 

user: Burns, J . A. Pages: 5 of 11 Friday. March 05. 2010 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 31612009 - To Payment Date: 3/10(2010 

lumber Date status Void Reason Reconciled! Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Differance 
Voided Data Amount Amount 

6286 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable ROBERT R.ANDREAS & SONS $1,230.00 

6287 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable ROCKY MOUNTAIN TRACKlNG,INC. $59.90 

6268 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable ROSCOE COMPANY $914.54 

6289 03110/2010 Voided 03/11/2010 Accounts Payable Saint Xavier University $164.00 

6290 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable SecretaI)' of State 525.00 

6291 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable SHANE'S OFFICE SUPPL V CO. $38.00 

6292 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable Shem Farley $180.00 

6293 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable SIGN EXPRESS $256.00 

6294 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable SIRSPEEOV $208.00 

6295 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable SOUTHWEST UNITED FIRE $650.00 
DISTRICTS 

6296 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable SPECIAL TV STORE UNUMITED $67.02 

6297 03110/2010 Open Accounts Payable SPRINT $342.59 

6298 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable ST ATE INDUSTRIAL PROOUCTS $247 .68 

6299 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable SUBURBAN CONCRETE INC. $6,701.15 

6300 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable SUBURBAN LASORA TORIES, INC. $166.00 

6301 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable SUBURBAN LIFE PUBUCATIONS $744.95 

6302 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable SunbeJt Rentals $1,105.80 

6303 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable Superior Lamp Inc. $346.52 

6304 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable SWANK MOTION PICTURE ,INC. $171.00 

6305 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable TANTOR MEDIA $83.98 

6306 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable TELE-TRON ACE HARDWARE $115.98 

6307 03110/2010 Open Accounts Payable TELE-TRON ACE HARDWARE $698.34 

6308 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable THE GALE GROUP $415.73 

user: Burns, J . A. Pages: 6 of 11 Friday, March 05. 2010 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Data: 3/612009 - To Payment Date: 3/1012010 

lumber Date Status Void Reason Reconciled! Source Payee Name Transaction Reconcifed DIfference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

6309 0311012010 Open Acmunts Payable THE HEATING & COOUNG WORKS $913.60 

6310 03/1012010 Opefl Accounts Payable The Management Assoc.of illinois $364.00 

6311 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable Timothy & Shewei Zhou-Cassidy $1,475.00 

6312 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable Traffic Control & Protection Inc. $3,511.20 

6313 0311012010 Open Acmunts Payable TRYAD AUTOMOTIVE $58.91 

6314 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable U.S. Cellular $377.59 

6315 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable UNITED PARCEL SERVICE $34.63 

6316 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable UNITED RADIO COMM,INC $242.29 

6317 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable UPSTART INC $216.40 

6318 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable US GAS $102.80 

6319 03l10i201 0 Open Accounts Payable USA TODAY $190.00 

6320 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable VCG UNIFORMICARLSON MURRAY $633.95 

6321 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable VERlZON WIRELESS $65.00 

6322 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable VOL TEXX,INC. $957.96 

6323 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable WALGREENS CO. $23.98 

6324 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable WATER ONE $28.50 

6325 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable WESTERN REMAC INC. $776.75 

6326 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable ZEE MEDICAL.INC. $336.43 

6327 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable 1 sl Source America $1,315.98 

6328 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable ABC Commercial Maintenance $1.245.00 
Services,loc. 

6329 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable AL'S RADIATOR $189.00 

6330 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable Alexander M.Salemo $4,372.50 

6331 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable ALFRED BENESCH & COMPANY $6,658.04 

user: Burns, J . A. Pages: 7 of 11 Friday. March 05. 2010 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 3/612009 - To Payment Date: 3/10/2010 

lumber Date Status Void Reason Reconciled! Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

6332 03110/2010 Open Accounts Payable AT&T $335.31 

6333 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable AT&T $271.74 

6334 0311012010 O!len Accounts Payable BERWYN ACE HARDWARE $.36.80 

6335 03110/2010 Open Aocounts Payable BERWYN DEVELOPMENT CORP $59,154.95 

6336 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable BERWYN WESTERN PL8G. & $1.475.00 
HEAnNG 

6337 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable ChIcago Sky $200.00 

6338 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable CINTAS #769 $823.60 

6339 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable CNA INSURANCE $4,001.00 

6340 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable Diamond Graphics, Inc. $3,840.00 

6341 03/1012010 Open Ao:;ounts Payable EDMUND P.WANDERLING $4,001.25 

6342 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable EMPIRE COOLER SERVICE,INC. $92.00 

6343 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable FEDERAL EXPRESS $34.40 
CORPORATION 

6344 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable Felco Vending, Inc. $85.00 

6345 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable FMP $103.04 

6348 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable FRANK NOVOTNY & ASSC. $1,617.00 

6347 03/1012010 Open Aocounts Payable Gabriel Auto Parts $323.67 

6348 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable Goldsline,Skrodzki, Russian,Nemec & $9,596.40 
Hoff,LTD. 

6349 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable HARRIS BANK $14.60 

6350 03/10/2010 Open Ao:;ounts Payable illinois State Treasurer $6.259.44 

5351 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable INTERSTATE BATIERY SYSTEM $135.64 
OF CENTRAL CHGO. 

6352 03/10/2010 Open Ao:;ounts Payable JACK PHElAN CHEVROLET $24.44 

6353 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable JACK'S RENTAL INC $136.89 

user: Burns, J, A. Pages: 8 of 11 Friday, March 05, 2010 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 3/612009 - To Payment Date: 3/10/2010 

~umber Date Status Void Reason Reconciled/ Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

6354 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable L. G . SPORTS OFFICIALS $1,944.00 

6355 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable Laner Muchin Dombrow &!c\(9l' Levin $1 ,579.90 
& Tech, Ltd 

6356 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable Lorman EducatiOll Servi03s $207.75 

6357 03{1012010 Open Accounts Payable M. K. SPORTS $4,256.00 

6358 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable MADISON CONSTRUCTION $61,737.00 

6359 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable MARIE l.ROGERS $100.00 

6380 03110/2010 Open Accounts Payable MILTON F PERSIN $110.20 

6361 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable MRA $18,n7.45 

6362 03/10/2010 Open Accounts Payable New World Systems $1,268 . .w 
6363 03110/2010 Open Accounts Payable PalIlck N.Murray $1,925.00 

6364 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable PERSONALIZED AWARDS $645.70 

6365 0311012010 Open Accounls Payable PHELAN DODGE $372.00 

6366 03110/2010 Open Accounts Payable PITNEY BOWES $2,039.00 

6367 03{1 01201 0 Open Accounts Payable Purchase Power $430.30 

6368 03110/2010 Open Accounts Payable RICOH AMERICAS CORPORATION $74.34 

6369 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable RIZZA FORD $52.44 

6370 03/1OJ2010 Open Accounts Payable ROSCOE COMPANY $711.49 

6371 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable S JANTELEZlO INSURANCE CO $30.00 

6372 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable SAM'S CLUB $679.75 

6373 03{1012010 Open Accounts Payable SAM'S CLUB $422.39 

6374 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable Secretary of Stale $20.00 

6375 03{1 0/201 0 Open Accounts Payable SIKICH lLP $12,000.00 

6376 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable Special Events Management $2,500.00 

user: Burns, J . A. Pages: 9 of 11 Friday. March 05, 2010 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 31612009 - To Payment Date: 3/10/2010 

~umber Date Status Void Reason Reconciled} Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled DllfeniMCe 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

63n 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable T·MOBILE $348.90 

6378 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable TIMOTHY W.SHARPE $2,400.00 

6379 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable TRY AD AUTOMOTive $1,166.24 

6380 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable USA SPORT PRODUCTS INC. 5145.19 

6381 0311012010 Open Accounts Payable VIDEO AND SOUND SERVICE,INC. $78.435.00 

6382 03/1012010 Open Accounts Payable VILLAGE OF NORTH RIVERSIDE $4,295.58 

·ype Check Totals: 205 Transactions $657.582.83 

)1 • General Cash Totals 

Checlts Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount 

Open 204 $657,418.83 

Voided $164.00 

Tolal 205 $057,582.83 50.00 

All Stalus Coont Transection Amount Reconciled Amount 

Open 204 $657,418.83 

Voided $164.00 

Total 205 $657,582.83 $0.00 

3rand Totals: 

Checks Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount 

Open 204 $657,418.83 

Voided 1 $164.00 

Total 205 $657,582.83 $0.00 

All Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount 

user: Burns, J. A. Pages: 10 of 11 Friday, March 05,2010 



user: Burns, J. A. 

CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 316/2009 - To Payment Date: 3/10/2Q1~----'" 

Open 204 ( $657,418.83 ') 

Void 

Total 205 

Pages: 11 of 11 

$164.00 

$657,582.83 

J 

$0.00 

Friday. March 05. 2010 



The ~ of Berwyn 

/ A Centary 01 Propess with Pride 

Cesar A. Santoy 
alii Ward Alderman 

8700 Waat 26" Straot B&rwyn, Ullnoia 6Ot.08..()'701 TBlaphona: (708) 788·.2680 hs: (70B) 788--288'7 
www.berwyn.O.gov 

March 5, 2010 

Honorable Mayor Robert J. Lovero and 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Handicap Sign Request: Request #639 
. Sheri Raynard-1327 Harvey 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

I concur with the investigating officer's recommendation in the attached handicap application to 
Approve the request. 

Respectfull y, 

Cesar A. Santoy 
5lh Ward Alderman 

-.-



We SeNe and ProtKI 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SERWYN 
rSbleE BEP-ARTMENr 

6401 West 31st Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0733 

Phone (l08) 795-5600 
Fax (708) 795-5627 Emergency 9-1-1 

HONORABLE MAYOR ROBERT J. LOVERO AND 
MEMBERS OF THE BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

BERWYN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
LOCAL ORDINANCE DIVISION 

JANUARY 14,2010 

RE: HANDICAPPED SIGN FOR: SHERI RAYNARD #639 

ATTACHED.IS A REQUEST FOR A HANDICAPPED SIGN TO BE 
ERECTED IN THE CITY OF BERWYN PARKWAY IN FRONT OF: 

1327 HARVEY AVENUE 

PLEASE REVIEW THE ATTACHED PAPERWORK AND ADVISE. 

CC: ALDERMAN CESAR A. SANTOYl 



( erwyn 
c.PoCice (j)ep rtment 

6401 West 3'" Street 
Berwyn, 11111101. ~02-07J3 

Phone (708) 795-5600 
(Fax) 7~S-5627 Emcrllency 9-1·1 

HANDICAPPED PARKING SIGN REQUEST & REPORT 

To: Mayor Robert 1. Lovero 
and Members of City Council 

Date: January 6,2010 

Name of Applicant: Sheri Raynard 

From: Berwyn Police Department 
Community Service Division 

Application #: 639 

Address: 1327 Harvey Ave Berwyn IL 60402 

Telephone: . __ 

Nature of Disability: 

Information YES 

Doctor's Note/Affidavit: [gI 

Owner's Support Letter: IZI 
Garage: 0 

Driveway: 0 

Off Street: 0 

On Street: IZI 

Meets Requirements: ~ 

NO 

0 

0 

!lSI 

rgj 

IZI 

0 

0 

Information YES 

Interviewed: 

Handicap Plates: 

Wheelchair: r 
Walker: 

Cane: r 

Oxygen: 

Report Number: 10-00234 

o 
o 

Recommendation: APPROVE ~ DENY 0 Reporting Officer: S. Diaz #180 

Comments: 

Aldennan: Ward: 



~ . :. ~ ::: ." -. '::: . 

. . , . ," : i i 1i !l i :.: ; . ·~J!~;i; :i/ 
, , ' 

i 

"', 

Applicant Name: ,.5ije;..e/ ?AyNA~ 

Appli~tAd&~s: ___ / __ 3_2 __ ~ ____ ~ __ ~_~ __ ~_e~-;/~_~ __ ~V._~_. ______________________ ___ 

Applicant Phone #: ____ ~~ __ ~~ __ ~-__ -~.~~~ __ ___ 

Applicant D/~ #: 
~-,, ~ 

D.O.B. ./ p .- 0 '7 -L/z 
... 

Vehlcle Make: --:' /:.....-::'._"()_'\./_7_/ • ......::4-=L=----e?_~_M_'I) 4NJ Vehlcle Color: ~ ~€ I 
License Plate #: _"_-"l...---_' ____ ""__ Handicapped Placard #: A D 3~J' Y J' 

Does APplicant Use; 

Wheelchair Walker -----'-- Cane Oxygen . ..? 

Parking Availability: 

Driveway No Garage Nu On Street Y~.J , Off Street A/v 

Notes: ,#,<.:1 , ){3,y'VA~ /-=' ;~aVcsT~ S/~,-v.s ,avE 7l.' ;,I£~ J 6/VP 
/ .--, ,I • " 

(..MfI .r;-b L?l,y'.J/("4t 4,I7L1vry -pg rlE£... /J{?Q7M'. SlIc ;5:-"7J17eS 7/147" CItY .J772r:3Er ~r-:?R.v/t.t) )..$ 

v.£AY' ll'VfIn:l> . ..5Hc 'Y§I;:::;) 4,f1/LJ Oc.\€:) N'-'T' JlAv'£ Ac,£5~ TZ' 94'<"I~_ S:.£ .:.57/1lC'S 
• 

7714r /7' /05 .!)/~r/c t/L./ .-~ /./t:.< t2L/;t..t,.6 u 8&'-\1"- STA/.,(!.j / '\hGJ ilEA. 

'g,.,..bEeyt? 01// 7#Ar '7Jr£ ~ci<-<- S7:&l/.~I5t.E.u..),5 i.~6";:"_ K.€/'r tt1C,...,::,E./). 01 ?H£ 

APPLICANT INTERVIEW ~A.I/) to/UJ . 

Date: Time: lDL,{)A~J Results: tlffO"! 1ft> 
Date: Time: Results: 
Date: Time: Results: 

Date: Time: Results: 
Date: Time: , Results: 

Completion Date: .' [6 ~[.. Application Number: [ &31 Logged In Book: I/&/ID 



=$ 
II 

'1::1 

, 
• .' 

ST ... noN COMPLAINT I/C!I 

9041 (Applicant File) 
REPORT TYl'Ii 

Incident Repo rt 
WHalIW'ORTlD 

01106J2010 13:44 
TII4! OF OCCURRENCE 

01/0612010 13:44 

Berwyn Police Department 
(708) 795-5600 6401 West 31st Street Benvyn, IL 60402 

I DElICftIPllON WClDIlNT. 

AppliCllDt File 10-00234 
R!L.A TED CAO • 1 DOH 

HOW RECElV!D 

Cl()"000965 RadIo 
LOCATION OF OfFENU 1IiOU5! NO .. 81RUT NAME) 

1327 S HARVEY AV BERWYN, IL 60402 

J ST A rua CODl! ITAlUII DATe 

'0 INVOLVED ENlTTIES .s 

... 
'S ... 
k 

H.l.ME j DOl J AO! J Ara£88 
Raynard, Sheri 1327 S HINey A V ls\ Bewyn, tL 6G402 
a&lI 

\ RACe J HaT \~ \~ I EYES 
I PHON!: 

F While, Caucasian 
UCR I TYPE I RELA T!O EV!NT I 

R.epo rting Party 

INVOLVED VEHICLES 

IIEHn'lAT!' I I~T! J lYPE 
IIIiVOI.\I!MENT I ¥WI 

\ Sedan,2..ooor 
YEAR \~iac I MODEL 

COLOR J COMMENTS 

2004 GrandAM Grey 

NARAAl1VE8 

In Summary: 

Sheri Reynard resides at 1327 S. Harvey Ave Berwyn IL 60402 and suffers from 
condition which limits her mobility on a daily basis. Sheri is requesting handicapped signs to be placed in front of her address 
due to on street parking being extremely limited. Sheri rents at the said addreas and provided an owner consent letter. Sheri 
also related that the back door is kept locked by the landlord and makes it difficult to walk up the rear stairs. Sheri also has 
no access to the garage on the premises. There are poJes located in front of said address where there were handicapped sins 
previously placed. 

Sheri Reynard meets the state requirements for being handicapped and meets the city requirements for being handicapped. 

For the above listed reasons this officer feels that this application should be considered for approval at this time. 

~l1NO OFflCI!ft \ STISOAlilt r REIJ1!WI!R J STAR • 

DlAZ" SEROJO R 



Th; ~ty of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Nora Laureto 
8th Ward Alderman 

6700 West 26lh Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402'0701 TelephoDe: (708) 749-6408 Fax: (708) 788'2675 

March 4,2010 

Mayor Robert Lovero 
Members of the City Council 
6700 W. 26th St. 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

www.berwyn·ilgov 

Dear Mayor and Member of the City Council: 

I was contacted by Mr. Bill Fitzgerald on March 2nd with regards to two upcoming Festivals at 
FitzGeralds located at 6615 Roosevelt Road. Mr. Fitzgerald is requesting permission to erect a tent for 
the st. Patrick's Day Festival on March 17th and for the July 4th Summertime Festival. In July he will 
require use of the tents again along with closure of Clarence Ave. from the alley to Roosevelt Road as 
he had done each year for this annual festival. In the past we also placed a horse barricade at Clarence 
at 13 th Street so that there is no through traffic, only local residents. The dates for July event this year 
are July 1 '\ 2nd

• 3rd, and 4th. It is my opinion that closing Clarence Ave. is also a safety issue for the 
residents and participants at the Festival. I am asking that this request be placed on the consent agenda 
for approval. 

Sincerely, 

~~ 
Nora Laureto 
Aldennan 81b Ward 
City of Berwyn 



l6rhe City of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

John Wysocki 
Finance Director 

6700 W08t 2(jt~ Street Derwyn. Illinois 600i02'0701 Telephone: (708) 788'2660 Fllx: (708) 788-2567 
www.bcrwyn-il.l.'Uv 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero and the City Council 

From: John Wysocki Jtlw ~ 
Subject: Surplus Dell grvers 

Date: March 5, 20 to 

I have spoken with Jim Frank regarding the following five retired Dell Power Edge servers: 

Dell Power Edge 2450, Serial #D5ZXODI 
Dell Power Edge 2650, Serial #H852761 
Dell Power Edge 2650, Serial #6LHLMl1 
Dell Power Edge 2650, Serial #9LHLMl1 
Dell Power Edge 2900, Serial #4CKCWBI 

I agree that these servers should be declared surplus property and sold for frur value. I will coordinate 
with Jim to ensure that sales proceeds are deposited into the general fund. 



RObr~ J. Lovero 

~aYOr 

/ 

Collections and 
Licensing 

6700 West 26Lh Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-07()1 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (70s) 749-8910 
www.berwyn-il.gov 

March 4, 2010 

Honorable Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
And Members of the City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

Dear Mayor and Council Members: 

Attached please find a list of business licenses which were issued by the Collection and Licensing 
Department during the month of February, 2010. Included are; storefronts, phone use only 
businesses as well as out of town contractors. I am also providing a list of businesses that have 
applied for a license with a current status of Application ReviewlPending as well as businesses 
waiting for inspections with a status of Inspections Pending. 



BERWYN BUSINESSES - LICENSED IN FEBRUARY, 2010 (STOREFRONTS) 

CORP. NAME OR 
NAME ADDRESS OWNERS NAME COMMENTS 

Circle K #6759 6401-05 W. Roosevelt Road RDK Ventures, LLC (new Corp) Filling Station (708) 749-1861 

Express Food and 
Cigarettes 6747 W. Cermak Road Kassim A Kassim (new owner) Groceries & Cigarettes (708) 484-3125 

Mariscos Zihuarenejo 6713 W. 26th Street Sergio Sota Restaurant (708) 795-9400 

Skyline Cafe/Jungle Joe's 6814 Windsor Avenue Michael (Price) Hudson Restaurant (708) 749-0586 

Circle K. #6756 6400-14 W. Ogden RDK Ventures, LLC (new Corp) Filling Station (708) 749--3091 

Berwyn Family Dental 
Center, P.C. 7001W. Ogden Avenue Cristina Co, DDS Dental Office (708) 749-2419 



BERWYN BUSINESSES - LICENSED IN FEBRUARY, 2010 ( PHONE USE ONLY) 

NAME ADDRESS 

ERA Plumbing Concepts 1521 S. Oak Park Avenue 

COA Digital Solutions 3311 S. Clinton Avenue 

CORP. NAME OR 
OWNERS NAME 

Eric Reyes 

Claudio D. Alee 

COMMENTS 

Contractor (Plumber) (773) 849-3128 

Satellite Dish Sales (708) 325-9000 



BUSINESS LICENSES ISSUED FOR FEBRUARY, 2010 
OUT OF TOWN CONTRACTORS 

NAME 

Bonsai Art Custom Woodwk 
Borre Electric 
Pekala Electric & Son 
Verne Henne Const&Elec 
Communication Bldrs 
Illinois Diversified Serv 
RWB Design, Inc. 
Comer Heating & Cooling 
PMN Heating & Cooling 
Ultimate Appliance Repair 
ABC Commercial, Inc. 
System Design Group 
91 st Development 
J. P. Plumbing, Inc. 
Old School Plumbing 
Signco, Inc. 
Tandem Landscape Co. 

ADDRESS 

323 Capitol, Sugar Grove 
9939 S. 87 Ave., Palos Hills 
9 Timber, Vernon Hills 
1201 Bridge, Yorkville 
491 Irmen, Addison 
173 Briarwood, Oak Brook 
7900 112th, Palos Hills 
3339 Columbus, Chicago 
6240 Grace, Chicago 
3N021 Swift. Lombard 
2 Ct of Harborside, Northbrook 
3650 State Route 49, Arcanum, OH 
6555 92nd, Oak Lawn 
12721 Old Plank, New Lenox 
2450 Baldwin, Aurora 
1327 31st, Melrose Park 
3337 114th, Chicago 

CORP, NAME OR 
OWNERS NAME 

Bonsai Art Custom Woodwork 
Wayne Borre 
Pekala Electric & Son 
Verne Henne 
Communication Builders, Inc. 
Illinois Diversified Serv Inc. 
RWB Design, Inc. 
Comer Heating & Cooling, Inc. 
PMN Heating & Cooling, Inc. 
Ultimate Appliance Repair, Inc. 
ABC Commercial, Inc. 
System Design Group, Inc. 
91st Development 
J. P. Plumbing, Inc. 
Chris Ludwig 
Signco, Inc. 
Tandem Landscape Company 

Page 1 

COMMENTS 

Contractor (Carpentry) 
Contractor (Electrical) 
Contractor (Electrical) 
Contractor (Electrical) 
Contractor (General) 
Contractor (General) 
Contractor (General) 
Contractor (HVAC) 
Contractor (HVAC) 
Contractor (HVAC) 
Contractor (Janitorial) 
Contractor (Low Voltage Installer) 
Contractor (Masonry) 
Contractor (Plumbing) 
Contractor (Plumbing) 
Contractor (Sign Hanger) 
Contractor (Landscaperrree Serv) 



- --------"-,--- .. - - '- -
. . - - --.. ---- ---- - . -- '--
Business Directory By Category For: Thursday, Marcil 04,2010 

Application Review 

Business Name Address Last Update Phone IDtI 
: 

AtJeca P/Jotography, 1nc. (773) 277-8828 12063 
6310W. Cermak Road Berwyn IL 60402 2/1712010 

BeIWyn Home Video (708) 788--7000 11557 
6716 W. Cermak Road Berwyn IL 60402 6/1112009 

Berwy" Transmlssiolls & Auto/Truck Rep. (708) 11393 
6226 W. Ogden A venue Berwyn IL 604{)2 3124/2009 

Jimmy Joltns (708) 488-1129 12048 
7028 W. Cennak Road Berwyn lL 60402 2/512010 

Jump For Joy Cllildcare Academy (708) 484-9505 12041 
7115 W. Roosevelt Road Berwyn IL 60402 2/112010 

La Cabuya Colombian Cuisine (708) 11543 
6512 112 Cermak Road Berwyn IL 60402 613120()9 
W. 

Lagniappe, LLC (312) 651-2037 11541 
2905 S. Ridgeland A venue Berwyn IL 60402 6/312009 

PCC Soul/. Family Health Center (708) 12013 
6201 W. Roosevelt Road Berwyn IL 60402 1122/2010 

Robert Coltie State Farm Insurance (708) 12018 
620lB W. Cermak Road Berwyn lL 60402 \/2512010 

Taco Yo (708) 12034 
6629 W. Roosevelt Road Berwyn ]L 60402 1/2912010 

Y And A C/erUlers U"U C (708) 11283 
2209 S. Highland Avenue Berwyn lL 60402 112212009 

Total Businesses •...•... 11 

( Business DireclOl)' By OUeROI)' ) 
Page fl ••.•••••• J 



Business Directory By Category For: Thursday, March 04,2010 

Application Pending 
--- -

Business Name Address Last Update PhoDe 10# 

29.99 Shoe Ware/louse (708) 11463 
6236 W. Ogden A venue Berwyn 1L 60402 412312009 

Communication Sales (708) 11544 
6405 W. 34th Street Berwyn IL 60402 6/312009 

More/elise, Inc. (708) 11460 
6929 W. Cermak Road Berwyn IL 60402 412112009 

Taquerla La Fuente (708) 484-0081 11948 
6714 W. Cermak Rd. Berwyn lL 60402 12/2/2009 

Total Businesses ..•.•... 4 

( Businus Directory By Category ) 
Page # .•......• 1 



Business Directory By Category For: T/.ursday, March 04, 20JO 

Inspections Pending 
- -----.. ---- ---_. 

Business Name Address Last Update Phone 1O# 

Bruce Raellum, D.C.P.C. (708) 749-0100 12070 
6430 W. Cermak Road Berwyn IL 60402 2/1912010 

Evitela Salazaf DBA Adam & Eve (708) 484-8311 12027 
2144 S. Clarence A venue Berwyn IL 60402 1128/2010 

Golden Homes Real Estale, lnc. (708) 10319 
6705 W. 26th Street Berwyn IL 60402 6123/2008 

Hallberg Insurance Network (708) 552-2454 12058 
6722W. Cermak Road Berwyn IL 60402 2/1112010 

Horrorbles, Illc. (708) 484-7370 11577 
6729 W. Roosevelt Road Berwyn IL 60402 612312009 

Lions Tal Kwon Do (708) 484-7555 11989 
6811 W. Roosevelt Road Berwyn IL 60402 1111/20 I 0 

Marathon Gas Food Mart AKA SlIreeJI Berwyn. Inc. (708) 11073 
1600 S. Oak Park Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 10/1512008 

Metro Staffmg AKA Midwest Investors Group, Inc (708) 12049 
6434 W. Cermak Road Berwyn IL 60402 21512010 

Saillt A 11th ony Hospital Doctor's OffIce (708) 788-4933 11979 
6917W. Cermak Road Berwyn IL 60402 1/5/2010 

Taquerla Arace/J (708) 484-9006 12004 
7021 W. Roosevelt Road Berwyn 1L 60402 1120/2010 

Va/lgard Distributloll (708) 484-2090 11529 
2905 S. Ridgeland A venue Berwyn 1L 60402 615/2009 

Vida Nueva #2 AKA New Life (708) 12005 
6519 W. 16th Street Berwyn 1L 60402 1/28/2010 

Total Businesses ...•.•.. 12 

( BuslDess Directol)' By CatesOf}' ) 
Page # .•..•...• 1 



/ 

ert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century ofProgresa with Pride 

Charles D. Lazzara 
Building Director 

6700 West 26111 Street Berwyn, illinois 60402"0701 Telepbone: (708) 788"2660 Fax: (708) 788"1427 
www.berwyn"i1.gov 

March 4,2010 

Honorable Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor of the City of Berwyn 
Members of City Council 

Re: Building and Local Improvement Permits 

Gentlemen: 

Attached hereto Is the financial report of Building and Local Improvement Permits Issued 
by the City of Berwyn for the month of February 2010, along with a copy of Permit 
Statistics for this same period. 

Charles D. Lazzar" J Dir 
Building Department 

CDL:cr 
Encs. 



Permits Issued By The Building Department Friday, March 05,2010 

Between: 21112010 And 2128/2010 

Building Permits IsSlUd: 3 
Cost oj Improvements: $7,500.00 

Dumpster Permits IsslUd: 3 
Cost oj Improvements: $200.00 

Electrical Permits Issued: 14 
Cost oj Improvements: $/5,751.00 

Fence Permits Issued: 1 
Cost oj Improvements: $6,500.00 

Garage Permits Issued: 3 
CostoJImprov~ents: $13,663.00 

HVAC Permits Issued: 16 
Cost oj Improvements: $71,293.32 

Local Improvement Permits Issued: 61 
Cost oj Improvements: $282,363.00 

Plumbing Permits Issued: 21 
Cost oj Improvements: $/7,312.00 

Roofing Permits Issued: 3 
Cost oj Improvements: $.1,480.00 

Sign Permits Issued: 7 
Cost oj Improvements: $56,280.00 

Total Permits: 132 Total Improvements: $175.342.32 

Fees Collected 
Backfill Inspection $50.00 

Building Permit $125.00 

Local Improvement Permit $5.820.00 

Electrical F eas $580.00 

Electrical Inspection $4,170.00 

SIgns $825.00 

( Building: PermlJ Fen Repof1) Page I of:1 



Permits Issued By The Building Department Prlday, Marcil 05,2010 

Between: 21112010 And 212812010 

Footing Inspection $50.00 

Framing Inspection $1,455.00 

Inspection $2,005.00 

Fence Fees $35.00 

Plumbing Fees $735.00 

Plumbing Inspection $2,740.00 

Plumbing Inspection (Underground) $460.00 

Post Hole Inspection $50.00 

HVAC Permit $795.00 

HVAC Inspection $3,125.00 

Service Charge $4,214.88 

InsulationlFire Stopping Inspection $630.00 

New Water Meter $775.00 

Tap Fee $1,500.00 

Demolition Fees $50.00 

Dumpster $325.00 

Parkway Use $50.00 

Parkway Inspection $80.00 

Pre-Pour Inspection $250.00 

Sidewalk Opening $75.00 

Street Opening $75.00 

Fine - Working Without Permit $700.00 

Roof Covering Fees $315.00 

Garage Permit $100.00 

Plan Review Fee - wJPermits $820.00 

Irotal Fees Collected. $32,979.88 

( Building: PumJ, Fea Report) Page 2 ojl 



Report Of Building Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn 

Name and Address 
Gurtner & Chasvez 

Wayne T. Lasecki 

Jose Carmona 

elizabeth LaBoy 

David camacho 

Alicia E. Armenta 

Be~een: 21111010 

1634 S. Grove Avenue 

1615 S. Cuyler Avenue 

1404 S. Scovine Avenue 

7014 W. 16th Street 

3827 S. Euclid Avenue 

2517 S. Clinton Avenue 

6 Blli/ding Pumils Issued During Period 

( BuiIsIlng: Permit Report) 

And 2/28/2010 

INSTAlL A BATHROOM IN TtlE BASEMENT - DUCT WORK 
IN BSMT WfB CHANNELED TO BATtlROOM. 

DEMO AND BUILD A NEW 20' X 20' X 12" GARAGE. 

INSTALL S.S. BATHROOM IN BASEMENT 

DEMO 13' X 20' GARAGE ONLY. 

ELECTRICAL REINSPECTION 

ELECTRIC RE INSPECTION 

Thllnday, Mardt 04,2010 

Cost Of Cost Of 

Issued Permit No. Improvements Permit 

21512010 Bldg-8 7369~ $2,500.00 $300.00 

211212010 Gar-B 7370-0 $12,363.00 $305.00 

211612010 Bldg-e 7371 ~ $5,000.00 $645.00 

211812010 Gar-S 7372-0 $1,300.00 $25.00 

211112010 Gar-R 7319-2 $0.00 $50.00 

2J26I2010 Bldg-R 7343-1 $0.00 $50.00 

Totals . ...• 111.16J.00 $1.375.00 

Pille} 0/1 



Permits Issued Thursday, March 4,2010 3:37 PM 

For Period Beginning 21112010 And ending 212812010 

.Slgn 

• Roof 

OPium 

.lmpt 

IIHVAC 

I! Gar 

Feb '201 

RlFence 

OElee 

_Dump 

• Bldg 

D 26 50 75 

Permit Detail 

2010 Fellruary Bldg 3 
2010 Febn.wy Oump 3 
2010 FebJ\l8ry Elec 14 
2010 February Fence 1 
2010 Febl'UllY Gar 3 
2010 FebJ\l8ry HVAC 16 
2010 February IIIIj)f 61 
2010 FebJ\J81)' Plum 21 
2010 Februal)' Rool 3 
2010 Febru&ly Sign 7 

13.2 

Total Permits Issued 132 



Permits Issued Thursday, March 4, 2010 3:38 PM 

For Period Beginning 21112009 And Ending 212812010 

Feb '2010 
~ 
~ -

OSlgn 

~ -0 

Jan '2010 5 [!I Roof .... 
Dec '2009 5:t • POD ... 

.~~ I 
,-

Nov '2009 

Oct '2009 

DPhm 

• .1 -Impr 
Sep '2009 ,-.. 1 

Aug '2009 

~I 
IIHVAC 

-="- = = '= 
'~ :t Jul'2009 II Gar 

Jun'2009 III Fence 
• I 

May '2009 I~ DElee 

Apr '2009 !!!=r I 

:E I~ 

I 

Mar '2009 

Feb '2()09 

.Dump 

• Bldg 

o 2S 50 75 100 125 150 175 200 260 276 

Permit Detail 
2010 February Bldg 3 2009 Decambef Bldg 15 
2010 February Dump ~ 2009 DecemOer Dump 6 
2010 February EIec 1. 2009 December Elec 20 
2010 February FIIflCe 1 2009 December Fenc& 4 
2010 February Gar ~ 2009 December Gar 4 
2010 Feblu8ry HVAC 18 2009 December HVAC 18 
2010 Febl\l8lY IRlpf 61 2009 0908mbeJ Imp( 108 
2010 February Plum 21 2009 Oecernbef Plum 24 
2010 February Roof 3 2009 Decembar POD 2 
2010 February Sign 7 2009 December Roo4 11 

132 2009 December SIg,. 3 

2010 Januay 8ldg 8 213 

2010 Janll8lY Dump 5 2009 November 8ldg 6 
2010 J8IlUIIIY Elec 10 2009 November Dump 8 
2010 J8IlUIIIY Fence 2 2009 Novembar Elae 20 
2010 January HVAC 11 2009 November Fence 9 
2010 January Impr 50 2009 November Gar 4 
2010 January Plum 20 2009 November HVAC 17 
2010 January POD 2009 November IRlpf 189 
2010 January Roo 7 2009 Novembef Plum 19 
2010 January Sign 3 2009 NovemOer Roof n 

117 2009 November Sign 6 
328 



Permit Detail 

2009 October 8Idg 9 2009 April Bldg 14 
2009 Octoller Dump 5 2009 April Dump 8 
2009 Octob8f Elec 19 2009 April Elec 20 
2009 Odober Fence 7 2009 April Fence 13 
2009 OdoOer Gar 8 2009 April Gar 7 
2009 October HVAC 18 2009 April HVAC 11 
2009 Odober Impr 209 2009 April Impr 202 
2009 Odoller Plum 28 2009 Apfll Plum 31 
2009 OcloOer POD 2 2009 April POD 1 
2009 Octobel' Roo' 89 2009 April Roof 50 
2009 Odober Sign 5 2009 April Sign 4 

379 361 

2009 S8f)tembel Bldg 5 2009 MalCh Bldg 17 
2009 September Dump a 2009 March Dump 9 
2009 September EIec 29 2009 Mardi aae 24 
2009 Sapiember Fence 15 2009 MalCh Fence 10 
2009 September Gar 1 2009 March Gar 7 
2009 September HVAC 13 2009 MardI HVAC 13 
2009 September Impr 286 2009 MardI tmpr 189 
2009 September Plum 31 2009 MalCh Plum 43 
2009 Septemb8f POD 2 2009 March POD 1 
2009 Seplember Roof 89 2009 March Roof 41 
2009 September Sign 2 2009 March Sign 8 

-459 360 

2009 August Bldg 15 2009 February Bldg 10 
2009 August DuITl9 7 2009 February Oump 6 
2009 August EIec: 19 2009 .Februasy Elec 21 
2009 August Fence 22 2009 February Fence 1 
2009 AUQusl Gar 3 2009 February Gar 1 
2009 August HVAC 7 2009 February HVAC -4 
2009 August IrJllI" 210 2009 February Impt 97 
2009 August Ptum 30 2009 February Plum 29 
2009 Augusl POD 6 2009 FebflJary POD 3 
2009 AugllSt Roof .<19 2009 Febl\lalY Roof 13 
2009 August Sign 2 2009 February Sign 8 

370 191 

2009 July Bldg 11 
2009 July Dump 5 
2009 July Elec 31 
2009 July Fence 13 
2009 July Gar 3 
2009 July HVAC 16 
2009 July ImtIf 2&9 
2009 Ju~ Plum 20 
2009 July Roof 81 
2009 JUly Sign 7 

428 

2009 June Bldg 13 
2009 June Dump 9 
2009 June Elec 31 

2009 June Fenoe 20 
2009 June Ger 7 
2009 June HVAC 9 
2009 JWlB Impr 245 
2009 June Plum 28 
2009 June POD 3 
2009 June Roof 78 
2009 June SIgn 6 

449 

2009 May Bldg 12 
2009 May Dump 5 
2009 May else 17 
2009 May Fenoe 2-4 
2009 May Gsr 2 
2009 May HVAC 12 
2009 May ImpI 260 
2009 May Ptum 21 
2009 May POD 1 
2009 May Roof 55 
2009 May Sign 

~IO 



Permit Detail 

Total Permits Issued 4195 


	CCBatch 1
	CCBatch2

